Public Document Pack

2N Hampshire
County Councll
NOTICE OF MEETING
Meeting Children and Families Advisory Panel
Date and Time Tuesday 5th February 2019 at 1:30pm
Place Chute Room, Ell Court, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the
public — please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence received.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest
and, having regard to the circumstances described in Part 3 Paragraph
1.5 of the County Council's Members' Code of Conduct, leave the
meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to
speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore all
Members with a Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at
the meeting should consider whether such interest should be declared,
and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, consider whether
it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save
for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.
4. DEPUTATIONS

To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.


mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk

5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.

6. SUPPORTING CHILDREN IN CARE WHO ARE LGBT+ (Pages 3 -
118)

To receive a report from the Director of Children’s Services providing an
update on the support and guidance provided to support adults working
with Children in Care who are LGBT+.

7. CARE LEAVERS PEER CHALLENGE (Pages 119 - 126)

To receive a presentation from the Director of Children’s Services
providing an overview of the outcomes of the Care Leavers Peer
Challenge.

8. THE HAMPSHIRE APPROACH (Pages 127 - 140)

To receive a presentation from the Director of Children’s Services on
‘The Hampshire Approach’.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:

The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.qov.uk for
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.


mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

Agenda Iltem 3

AT A MEETING of the Children and Families Advisory Panel of HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL held at the castle, Winchester on Tuesday 16th October
2018

Chairman:
p Councillor David Keast

p Councillor Roz Chadd p Councillor Pal Hayre

p Councillor Martin Boiles p Councillor Jackie Porter
p Councillor Ann Briggs p Councillor Robert Taylor
p Councillor Fran Carpenter p Councillor Malcolm Wade

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

All Members were present.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed,
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a
Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they
considered whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part
5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak
in accordance with the Code.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed.

DEPUTATIONS

No deputations were received.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman had no announcements to make.

HAMPSHIRE ADOPTION SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

The Panel received a report from the Director of Children’s Services providing
the annual update on Hampshire’s Adoption Service for 2017-18.

The Panel heard that the number of potential adopters progressing to
assessment has not only remained strong but has increased, in contrast to the

Page 13



45.

national picture. The panel also received an overview of the timeliness of stage
1, stage 2 and fast tracked applications, all of which were in line with the
governments expectations.

Members heard that over the last year, 55 children had been adopted with a very
low number of disruptions. This includes eleven sibling groups. An overview of
the work plan for 2018-19 was provided.

In response to questions members heard that;

e A decrease in numbers could indicate that there is an improvement in
prevention however numbers are in line with national trends. It was noted
that adoption is always the last resort when planning for a child’s
permanency.

e Support is withdrawn at the point that an Adoption Order is placed.

e |If potential Foster Carers lack the experience required, support is
provided to help them establish skills in relation to childcare.

e There are no restrictions on potential adopters, all will be considered
including single people and there is no cap on age.

e Children are told about their history in an honest but age related way.

Resolved: That the Children and Families Advisory Panel noted the work of
Hampshire’s Adoption Agency.

REGIONAL ADOPTION AGENCY

The Panel received a report from the Director of Children’s Services providing an
overview of the Regional Adoption Agency currently being established. The
Panel heard that in June 2015 the Department for Education published °
Regionalising Adoption’ and required all adoption agencies in England to
consider how to work closely together on a regional basis. This was enacted as
the Education and Adoption Act 2016 which required authorities and voluntary
adoption agencies to join together to form Regional Adoption Agencies (RAAs).
Adoption in Hampshire County Council has been rated as ‘Outstanding’ by
Ofsted and as such Hampshire is taking the lead in establishing the new RAA, to
be known as Adopt South. The recommended operating model for Adopt South
will deliver the following main services across the Adopt South region;

¢ Recruitment, assessment and approval of adopters,

e Matching of children in need of adoptive families,

e Post-adoption support.

In response to questions members heard that;

e The model for Adopt South seeks to build on the current good practice
within each authority to deliver a cohesive, efficient and effective service
and the plans do not threaten Hampshire’s ‘Outstanding’ rating.

e The RAA will not require any additional funding to that currently being
spent on adoption.

e This is not the first stage of a national approach to adoption, although
there will be improvement work between regions to increase standards.

e Adoption panels will also become regional.

Page ﬁ



46.

47.

Resolved: That the Children and Families Advisory Panel note the work
being undertaken to create the Regional Adoption Agency, Adopt South,
as required in legislation.

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD

The Panel received a report from the Director of Children’s Services providing an
overview of the first twelve months of the Corporate Parenting Board (CPB).

The Panel heard how the CPB was a significant factor in ensuring that the
Council met its duties in relation to its role as a Corporate Parent. Members
noted that the CPB had only been formed a year ago, and as such it was still
developing and establishing itself.

Resolved: That the Children and Families Advisory Panel support the
ongoing role of the Corporate Parenting Board, who ensure that all
services to children in care and care leavers are of a high standard, and
ensure they are being well supported in all aspects of their life.

UNACCOMPANIED ASYLUM SEEKING CHILDREN (UASC) IN HAMPSHIRE

The Panel received a report from the Director of Children’s Services providing an
update on Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) in Hampshire.
The Panel heard that approximately half of the UASC looked after by Hampshire
have been accepted through the National Transfer Scheme, which ensures
responsibility is taken for UASC as a region. The alleviates pressure on areas
with a high number of UASC such as Kent and Portsmouth. This is suggested to
be 0.007% of the population (192 for Hampshire). At the end of August 2018,
Hampshire had 132 UASC as part of this and 93 care leavers who were over 18
and so counted separately.

Members heard that while there continues to be a flow of UASC coming into
Hampshire, the future trends are impossible to predict. It was noted that children
in Hampshire are well protected however and become ‘Looked After Children’
and then Care Leavers who receive support until the age of twenty five.

In response to questions members heard that;

e Central government provides grants to cover some of the costs of UASC
but do not cover it all.

e The extra children do provide an additional challenge for adoption,
however many children are placed out of county with Independent
Fostering Agencies which can be expensive.

e An age assessment is taken for all UASC to establish their age, this is
undertaken by trained social workers.

Resolved: That the Children and Families Advisory Panel note the content

of the report and the activity being undertaken to support UASC in
Hampshire.

Page35



48. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - EXEMPT

The exempt minutes of the previous meeting were agreed.

Chairman, Children and Families
Advisory Panel

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 6

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Report
Committee/Panel: Children and Families Advisory Panel
Date: 5 February 2019
Title: Supporting children in care who are LGBT+
Report From: Director of Children’s Services

Contact name: Sue Kocaman, Head of Strategy and Operations (West)

Tel: 01962 846831 Email: sue.kocaman@hants.gov.uk

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Children and Families Advisory Panel note the content of the
report and the guidance developed to support adults working with
children in care who are LGBT+

2.  Summary

2.1 The purpose of this short report is to bring to the attention of the Children
and Families Advisory Panel, the good practice guidance which was
recently developed to support adults working with children in care who
are LGBT+

2.2 The guidance was formally launched in September 2018 along with a
survey of staff from children’s services and other agencies working with
our children in care.

2.3 A copy of the guidance is attached for information
3. Contextual Information

3.1 The guidance was developed in recognition of the fact that children and
young people who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, those
uncertain about their sexuality and/or gender identity and those
exploring or questioning their sexuality are potentially vulnerable and are
likely to need and want access to advice and support as they grow and
develop.

3.2 Children in care may be more vulnerable than their counterparts, being

more likely to have experienced difficulties and challenges in their lives
and to have experienced a breakdown in their primary relationships.

Page 7




3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

If they are also trying to understand their emerging sexuality or gender
identity they will need to know there is someone they can talk to and who
they can trust. Finding an adult to trust may be more difficult when a child
is in care, particularly if their coming into care coincides with trying to
understand their sexuality or gender identity.

Anecdotally, managers and staff were aware of a number of children in
care who identify as gay or lesbian, bisexual and increasingly children
who identify as transgender. On an individual child basis, staff and carers
have been able to help and advise children, accessing support and
expert guidance and services where necessary.

Providing the right support to a child early on can prevent them from
feeling excluded or ‘different’. It can also minimise the risk of them
exploring these issues in an unsafe environment and potentially
exposing themselves to risk of bullying, exploitation or other harm.

Where the adult is in the role of Corporate Parent (or corporate family)
there is a responsibility on that adult to be able to have informed
conversations about relationships and sexuality. The language used, and
the acceptance of a child’s uncertainty and vulnerability are crucial in
creating an atmosphere of acceptance.

Children and young people who identify as transgender are known to be
particularly vulnerable to bullying and exploitation. They are known to be
at greater risk of self-harming and are more likely than their peers to
attempt to kill themselves.

In order to ensure that adults working with our children in care were able
to offer the best possible response to children and young adults, and to
meet the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010, a small multi agency
group of staff and carers worked together to compile the good practice
guidance.

Alongside the development of the guidance a Snap Survey was created
and distributed to staff and carers across all agencies who are part of the
Hampshire Safeguarding Board partnership. The guidance and survey
were launched simultaneously with a view to giving information about the
services, advice, and support available and finding out the areas where
adults felt less confident in supporting children so that training and
awareness raising could be made available.

3.10 In November 2018 a guide for Hampshire schools and colleges was also

launched and the results of the SNAP survey were analysed to identify
the next steps in supporting adults to support children.

Page 8



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

Next Steps

The good practice guidance was well received by professionals who
were looking for guidance and access to information about services. It
also provides a framework that professionals can work within, giving
them confidence to articulate the approach taken by Children’s services
and other agencies who want to support children and young people who
are LGBT+

However, as expected, the SNAP survey (which had 230 respondents)
showed that not all respondents felt that a young person would be able
to discuss their LGBT+ identity with them. The maijority would signpost a
young person to colleagues, more senior staff and/or specialist services
instead.

When respondents were asked where they would go for further
information for an LGBT+ young person seeking support, other
colleagues, more senior staff and/or specialist services were the most
common responses. A large number of answers focused on the support
available to them within their own establishment or organisation, for
example, counsellors and pastoral support teams. Some said they would
seek further information on the internet or from a range of other agencies
such as Children’s Services, Breakout Youth and Y Services.

Respondents felt that further training would be helpful for learning and
development opportunities relating to LGBT+. Training would be
welcomed in the form of one off workshops or whole staff training. Many
would benefit from education around current terms and attitudes and
ongoing support in the form of an online toolkit or resources.

Another learning and development opportunity identified was for local
support and opportunities for discussing LGBT+ issues, not only with
young people but also their parents/carers, especially in cases where the
parents/carers are not supportive of the young person.

The working group is keen not to lose the impetus created by the
publication of the guidance and is working to organise an event later in
2019. The aim is to enable staff to continue having conversations about
the gender and sexuality issues that affect all our children so that
awareness continues to be raised and confidence grows. This is turn will
help children and young people to feel confident about talking to adults,
less anxious and build their resilience.

Conclusion
In conclusion, vulnerable children such as children in our care, need to
be able to trust adults who work with them and care for them to have

confident conversations about their gender and sexuality. The practice
guidance recently issued for schools and for carers and other

Page 9



5.2

professionals will help to create a climate whereby conversations can be
had with increasing confidence.

The SNAP survey shows that whilst many professionals are already
aware of the issues, know where to go for advice and support and feel
happy to have conversations with children and young people, this is not
true of all adults. More opportunities need to be created for
conversations to take place so that all adults and children have an
opportunity to develop their ideas and thinking, and this includes adults
in the wider community such as the parents and extended families of
children in our care, enabling them to offer emotional support to children
well into adulthood.

Page 10



Integral Appendix A

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | Yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse Yes
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, Yes

inclusive communities:

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 11




Integral Appendix B

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

Equality Duty

. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the

Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act;

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who do not share
it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a
relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;

Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected
characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is
disproportionally low.

1.2. Equalities Impact Assessment:

A high level Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken.
Impact on Crime and Disorder:

Not applicable.

Climate Change:

How does what is being proposed, impact on our carbon footprint / energy
consumption?

Not applicable.

How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate change,
and be resilient to its longer term impacts?

Not applicable.

Page 12



Appendix i

Practice Guidance and Practice Resource

Supporting children in care in Hampshire and the Isle of Wight who are
LGBT+*

This practice guidance has been produced to ensure that adults working with
children and young people in care who are LGBT+ are meeting the requirements of
the Equalities Act and therefore meeting the needs of children and young people in
our care.

The Act simplifies, strengthens and harmonises the current legislation to provide
Britain with a new discrimination law which protects individuals from unfair treatment
and promotes a fair and more equal society.

There are nine characteristics protected under the Equality Act 2010. They are:

age
disability

gender reassignment
marriage and civil partnership
pregnancy and maternity
race

religion or belief

sex

sexual orientation

Hampshire County Council , Isle of Wight council and partner agencies recognise
that children and young people who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, those
uncertain about their sexuality and/or gender identity and those exploring or
questioning their sexuality are potentially vulnerable and are likely to need and want
access to advice and support as they grow and develop.

Where children are also at risk of harm and/or in the care of the local authority they
may be more vulnerable and are likely to be in need of additional support or
services. This is because children and young people who are in care will by definition
have experienced difficulties and challenges in their lives and are likely to have
experienced a breakdown in their primary relationships. If they are also trying to
understand their emerging sexuality or gender identity they will need to know there is
someone they can talk to and who they can trust. Finding an adult to trust may be
more difficult when a child is in care, particularly if their coming into care coincides
with trying to understand their sexuality or gender identity.

This includes those children and young people whose parents/carers or siblings are
LGBT+, recognising the impact this might have on the child, especially if they have

not been able to access information and support

Working in consultation with children and young people in care and those in the
LGBT+ communities, this guidance has been produced as a practice resource for

7
Page 13


https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/equality-act-2010
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#age
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#disability
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#reassignment
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#marriage
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#pregmat
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#race
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#rob
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#sex
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#lgb

Appendix i

professionals. It provides some background information and identifies a range of
places where children and adults can access practical information, advice and
support.

*Why use the letters LGBT+ in our title? The key to this question is in the little + at
the end. The full spectrum of human relationships cannot be simplified into four sub-
headings. The plus sign is an indicator that we are aware that many other identities
exist beyond lesbian, gay, bisexual or trans and each person should be understood
and responded to appropriately. See appendix D for more information.

Good practice/key principles:

The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the child (UNCRC) has 4 key
principles which are relevant to this aspect of children’s lives:

1. Non-discrimination (article 2)

2. Best interest of the child (article 3)

3. Right to life survival and development (article 6)
4. Right to be heard (article 12)

Children will naturally explore their sexuality and gender as they grow up. It should
be our aim to create a society where children are able to talk to adults who are
confident and comfortable to talk to children and where children feel safe and
supported to explore this area of their lives.

Adults-including care staff and foster carers- will not always feel confident and
comfortable discussing the issues that children need to talk about so, access to
training and information is important. This includes being able to signpost a child to
someone who can help. Adults have a legal and moral responsibility for finding
useful and suitable resources or to signpost the child to appropriate services.

Providing the right support to a child early on can prevent them from feeling excluded
or ‘different’. It can also minimise the risk of them exploring these issues in an unsafe
environment and potentially exposing themselves to risk of bullying, exploitation or
other harm.

Children and young people who identify as trans are known to be particularly
vulnerable to bullying and exploitation. They are known to be at greater risk of self
harming and are more likely than their peers to attempt to kill themselves.

https://www.theguardian.com/education/2017/jun/27/half-of-trans-pupils-in-the-uk-
tried-to-take-their-own-lives-survey-finds

The language and processes that agencies and individuals use that require
individuals to identify themselves by gender, can contribute to a sense of
disempowerment for those who do not feel comfortable identifying themselves as

8
Page 14


https://www.theguardian.com/education/2017/jun/27/half-of-trans-pupils-in-the-uk-tried-to-take-their-own-lives-survey-finds
https://www.theguardian.com/education/2017/jun/27/half-of-trans-pupils-in-the-uk-tried-to-take-their-own-lives-survey-finds

Appendix i

male or female. Being aware of this and changing our language will contribute to a
change of culture and social acceptances of differences. Adults must listen to
children and take their lead from the child for the support and help they need. For
example when the child expresses the wish to be identified by a new name, this
should be used in face to face meetings as well as in case records or other formats.

Where the adult is in the role of Corporate Parent (or corporate family) there is a
responsibility on that adult to be able to have informed conversations about
relationships and sexuality.

Information for foster carers and practitioners

e DON’T assume that every young person in your care is heterosexual or
‘straight’

e DO Challenge homophobia, biphobia & transphobic language if you hear it.

e DON’T impose gender stereotypes on young people (e.g.: dolls are for girls,
soldiers are for boys)

e DO encourage young people to follow their own interests.

e DON’T push young people into discussing LGBT issues if they don’t want to
and DON’T pressure them into Coming Out.

e DO make information easily available to young people. They may benefit from
contacting support groups and organisations independently

e DON'’T feel that you are expected to have all the answers

e DO make use of the services listed on this website.

e DO be prepared to learn a new language when it comes to understanding and
discussing issues of sexuality, sexual orientation and gender identity.

e DO refer to the child in the way they prefer (hame and pronoun)

The following information is taken from https://www.Igbtyouthincare.com

Foster carers and adoptive parents

During preparation and assessment all prospective foster carers and adopters are
given opportunities to explore the issues of gender and sexuality. Many foster carers
and adopters are themselves from LGBT backgrounds and some children in care
will have birth parents or other family members who are LGBT+ themselves. Training
and advice via elearning is something that all foster carers and adopters undertake.

Childrens home staff also have experience in working with and supporting children
in care who are LGBT+

Representatives from each of the Hampshire Childrens homes attend termly
Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) meetings to explore how they are delivering
and supporting relationships and sex education activities in each home. This
includes discussing LGBT+ issues and support structures.

9
Page 15


https://www.lgbtyouthincare.com/

Appendix i

The group shares resources and discusses how to support children with particular
questions or concerns. Updates are provided regarding county training opportunities.
The forum is attended by the Teenage Pregnancy Lead, Adults’ Health and Care,

Public Health who is able to share strategic and operational developments.

Training, education, elearning resources and support services
Hampshire LGBT+ Alliance:

The LGBT+ Alliance is an alliance of Hampshire-based LBGT+ Networks that have
pledged to work together. Their website has information about events and support

services in Hampshire. The weblink is below.

https://www.hants.gov.uk/community/Igbt-alliance

RADE (Rights and Diversity Education) Centre
has a selection of resources available to borrow- the web link is below

www.hants.qov.uk/the-rade-centre

Schools and education settings in Hampshire are a source of advice and
information for children. The PHSE lead, pastoral lead or ELSAs are often a
particularly good source of support

A guidance pack has been developed to support schools and FE colleges and a
young people’s charter is also being developed, informed by a group of children who
meet together to look at equalities and rights and act as advocates for other children.
The guidance pack is due to be launched in Autumn 2018

Hampshire Virtual School

The work of the virtual school is focused on the education and welfare of children
and young people looked after (CLA) in the primary, secondary and special sectors
as well as with care leavers. The virtual school works in partnership with social
workers, schools, and other county children’s services and teams.

Website:http://www3.hants.gov.uk/cic-virtual-school
Email: virtualschool@hants.gov.uk
Foster carers’ call line: 01962-845232

Further resources
There are lots of on line resources-there are some examples below:

A link to a booklet aimed at the friends, partners and family of women who are
lesbian or bi- sexual and are in need of emotional support

10
Page 16


https://www.hants.gov.uk/community/lgbt-alliance
http://www.hants.gov.uk/the-rade-centre
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/cic-virtual-school
mailto:virtualschool@hants.gov.uk

Appendix i

SLS Booklists LGBT
KS3 4 2017.pdf

https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/Igbt-media/Files/8712a19a-38fb-430f-8¢c51-
944ccb7e2b63/FENT 1440144232 LF-0001-YGAF-Booklet-FINAL-Web.pdf

A leaflet for children in foster care who are trans

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52f7c8e3e4b0bae912¢c77b07/t/5841b3f01b63
1b6653c73234/1480700917425/Trans+youth+in+foster+care.pdf

A guide produced by the LGBT foundation with some useful legal advice

https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/Igbt-media/Files/d539a98f-a586-4c32-9736-
ae9c5fbac2dd/TransGuide1-Spreads-V2.pdf

A really useful guide produced by a group called LGBT youth in care:

https://www.lgbtyouthincare.com

Trans Youth in Care - a Toolkit for Caring Professionals

Trans Youth in Care - a Toolkit for Caring professionals. This resource toolkit is
designed to help educate professionals working with trans young people.

https:///Trans+Youth+in+Care+-+A+Guide+For+Social+Care+Professionals.pdf

Hampshire school library service has created a booklist for secondary schools,
which is on the link below. Schools can request resources for children in care and
publications can also be accessed from the public library for both secondary and
primary age children.

Research in Practice

Is accessible to all staff with a hants.gov.uk email address and to all foster carers
who have signed up to access the RiP website

Barnardos:

Offer training, information and advice for children, parents and professionals via the
Barnardos website. The Barnardos on line transgender training pack contains useful
definitions, reading material and advice on line safety and how to identify and deal
with bullying

Celebrate who you are with Pride - Supporting LGBT children and their families.

11
Page 17


https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/lgbt-media/Files/8712a19a-38fb-430f-8c51-944ccb7e2b63/FENT__1440144232_LF-0001-YGAF-Booklet-FINAL-Web.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/lgbt-media/Files/8712a19a-38fb-430f-8c51-944ccb7e2b63/FENT__1440144232_LF-0001-YGAF-Booklet-FINAL-Web.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52f7c8e3e4b0bae912c77b07/t/5841b3f01b631b6653c73234/1480700917425/Trans+youth+in+foster+care.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52f7c8e3e4b0bae912c77b07/t/5841b3f01b631b6653c73234/1480700917425/Trans+youth+in+foster+care.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/lgbt-media/Files/d539a98f-a586-4c32-9736-ae9c5f5ac2dd/TransGuide1-Spreads-V2.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/lgbt-media/Files/d539a98f-a586-4c32-9736-ae9c5f5ac2dd/TransGuide1-Spreads-V2.pdf
https://www.lgbtyouthincare.com/
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/58dcbb6be3df28ace47ce187/t/593928678419c2c9745a4f62/1496918245819/Trans+Youth+in+Care+-+A+Guide+For+Social+Care+Professionals.pdf

Appendix i

There are a number of Pride events locally across Hampshire and within the south
coast region. Pride events provide an opportunity for the LGBT+ community to come
together to honour, celebrate and support the LGBT+ community. They are generally
very colourful, fun and flag filled events that include a parade/procession and staged
entertainment.

Details of individual events are available on line

Statutory and voluntary services

Primary Health care services

GPs — GPs currently have limited awareness of what support is available locally for
LGBT patients and their families. The West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning
Group (WHCCG) children’s safeguarding team are going to share resources with
practices and help them consider how to make their waiting rooms LGBT-friendly so
that children and young people feel comfortable to discuss their sexuality/gender
with their GP.

The Royal College of GPs provides guidance for the care of LGBT+-patients, and
trans-people in primary care. Although these documents are not specific to children
and young people they contain useful advice and information for GPs on how to

support this age group and address their health needs.

Stonewall has a guide for the NHS that GP practices can use with an action plan to
ensure they meet the needs of this patient group.

These documents are linked below for reference:

http://www.rcgp.org.uk/policy/rcgp-policy-areas/Igbt.aspx

https://www.stonewall.org.uk/sites/default/files/stonewall-quide-for-the-nhs-web.pdf

Specialist nurses for children in care

Any child or young person who wishes to can discuss their sexuality or gender with
the specialist nurses during their statutory assessments. Each child or young person
will be seen as an individual and will be given every opportunity within the
assessment to discuss in a secure and safe environment their feelings and issues.
As a result and with their consent, they will be supported to access specific local and
national organisations to gain ongoing support for them and their carers if they wish.

12
Page 18


http://www.rcgp.org.uk/policy/rcgp-policy-areas/lgbt.aspx
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/sites/default/files/stonewall-guide-for-the-nhs-web.pdf

Appendix i

Child and Adolescent Mental Health services (CAMHS )

CAMHS have noted a significant increase in referrals including children who are in
care. As a result, practice has developed and confidence grown in that practice,
including asking children how they want to be referred to, how they want to dress
and supporting carers with these discussions.

Where children are being referred for consideration for gender re assignment
treatment, there has been the expectation that referrals to the Tavistock and
Portman clinic will usually be made via CAMHS. Whilst this has caused some
anxiety amongst other professionals due to the service being concerned with Mental
Health, at assessment the adolescents who are referred have all had a number of
other issues which have required further support from CAMHS. Some young people
may also be on the Autistic Spectrum, have a learning difficulty and for Children in
Care their identity issues are complex. Integral to the assessment is the screening of
risk both in term of mental health but also from exploitation and bullying both in
person and on line.

Should referrals be made to the Tavistock and Portman Clinic through a GP or other
professionals, they will need on-going support from adults during the long waiting
time.

The Hampshire Youth Offending Team (HYOT) identified there was a lack of LGBT+
support available to young people in the New Forest area. The nearest available
support was in Southampton City centre and Eastleigh which was not easy for those
in the Forest area to access and often acted as a barrier to engagement.

The HYOT contacted secondary schools within the New Forest area, Youth Support
Services, Childrens services, Police, Probation, CAHMS, Health, HYOT, Youth
Crime Prevention Team to gather evidence in attempt to confirm if anyone else has
experienced similar issues due to the lack of LBGT+ support and prove the need for
services which resulted in Breakout Youth developing LGBT+ youth groups and 1:1
support across the New Forest.

Youth Services:

There are youth services offering specific support for children and young people who
are LGBT+ and others who welcome LGBT+ children to participate in social events
(for example the scouting and guiding movement-see link below)

quidingconversation sexgenderbullying20162.pdf

Young people can also access advice via the LGBT switchboard (0300 330 0630)

Whilst this was initially set up with adults in mind, it can be accessed by young
people. However, in the experience of established youth work services, children and
young people prefer to access support and advice face to face

13
Page 19


file://infldar001/HCC_HomeDrives/sshqcfss/TempFolder/guidingconversation_sexgenderbullying20162.pdf

Appendix i

Examples of youth services around Hampshire are:
Breakout Youth

Breakout Youth is a Hampshire wide charity for young people who identify as
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or those who are unsure or questioning their
gender identity and/or sexual orientation.

Groups run in the Isle of Wight as well as in Andover, Basingstoke, Eastleigh, Hart,
Isle of Wight, New Forest, Romsey, Rushmoor and Southampton. The service is for
children and young people up to the age of 21, up to 25 if additional needs are
present.

Groups are aimed at offering a safe and confidential space for young LGBT+ people
to socialise, learn and have fun by offering activity based and educational sessions
and encouraging young people to join in to help build their confidence.

Breakout can enable young people to access other services they require through
signposting and referrals and can support members with telling people about their
gender or sexual orientation and/or gender identity, plus helping them to find ways to
cope with challenges in their lives and support them to stay safe in their relationships
and community.

Y Services LGBT+ Youth Support Service

Y Services for Young People is a local youth work charity. Charity Number 1145664.
Y Services focuses on developing opportunities for young people aged 11 - 19 which
support and help them to learn about themselves, others and society, through
informal educational activities which combines enjoyment with personal
development. The organisation advocates for and empowers local young people to
have a voice and a place within their local community. They have a proven record of
developing high quality youth work projects which meet identified community needs.
Y Services is successful in raising the aspirations of young people through increased
confidence and self-belief by providing engaging development opportunities.

Y Services LGBT+ Support Services offer a professional and confidential service for
young people aged 11 — 19 (and up to 25 if the young person is a care leaver or has
additional needs) who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or who are
questioning and/or unsure of their sexuality or gender identity.

What Y Services can offer:

Weekly LGBT+ Youth Group for ages 11 — 19 year (up to 25 with additional needs)
from 6.30 — 9pm as well as 1:1 support based in the school/college or community in
the Fareham, Gosport, Havant/Waterlooville and Winchester/southern parishes
areas.

Training and other opportunities:

14
Page 20



Appendix i

e Support to refer young people to our various provisions including specialist
services (Tavistock and Portman GIDS) as well as other youth opportunities
and LGBT+ Groups, Health and wellbeing drop in sessions, Y Keep safe
(raising awareness of CSE, unhealthy relationships etc and providing
strategies to improve resilience and understanding)

¢ Information stand at parents evenings, fresher fairs, conference and
professional network events

e Parents and carers of transgender young people support group. Meets
monthly on the first Saturday of every month, 10am — 12 noon at Xperience
Young Persons Centre, Trinity Street, Fareham, PO16 7SJ

e Sold Services for PSHE lesson delivery

e Sold service for bespoke staff training

For more information of services and support contact Y Services LGBT+ Youth
Development Worker Dawn Tracy. E: dawn@yservices.co.uk T:07503 353636 or
E:info@yservices T:07585 115022

Mermaids is a national organisation that focuses on supporting children, young
people, and their families to achieve a happier life in the face of great adversity. They
work to raise awareness about gender nonconformity in children and young people
amongst professionals and the general public. They also campaign for the
recognition of gender dysphoria in young people and lobby for improvements in
professional services.

HELPLINE: 0344 334 0550 (Monday - Friday; 9am - 9pm)

https://www.mermaidsuk.org.uk/

Tavistock and Portman GIDS

The Gender Identity Development Service (GIDS) is a highly specialised clinic for
young people presenting with difficulties with their gender identity. Our service was
established in 1989. They are commissioned by NHS England who set the service
specifications for how we work. Some people feel uncomfortable with the gender
they were assigned at birth whilst others are unhappy with the gender role that
society requires. GIDS help their clients to explore their feelings and choose the path
that best suits their ideals.

http://gids.nhs.uk/

Chrysalis-

Chrysalis provides support, advice, advocacy, counselling and wellbeing for those
who are transgender and their significant others across Hampshire and East Dorset.

If you are working with trans young people and want some additional training,
support or advice then please contact our office team on info@chrysalis-gii.org and
check out the website www.chrysalis-gii.org.

15
Page 21


mailto:dawn@yservices.co.uk
https://www.mermaidsuk.org.uk/
http://gids.nhs.uk/
mailto:info@chrysalis-gii.org
http://www.chrysalis-gii.org/

Appendix i

Chrysalis offer generic and bespoke training courses around general transgender
awareness and more specifically on working with trans clients. They can also offer
supervision and consultancy.

Face to face services are for 18+ so and carers, older siblings and partners of trans
young people would be welcomed at our Significant Others support groups which
provide facilitated, non-judgemental, peer support space and workshops as well as
one-to-one counselling.”

Kroma-

Kroma is an LGBT+ organisation focusing on adults. Their aim is to empower and
enable the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and alternative (LGBT+)
communities, their families and friends, through awareness, inclusiveness and
supportiveness. The majority of Kroma’s work is provided through weekly meetups
for all LGBT+ communities in local coffee shops throughout Hampshire. For more
information on services provided contact:

http://www.kromalgbt.org.uk/

Lesbian and Gay Liaison Officers: LAGLOs as they are known were established in
1996. They are a mix of police officers and police staff members who have additional
awareness, insight and training on matters relating to sexual orientation and gender
identities.

Hampshire Constabulary is striving towards an ever stronger commitment to
recognising and respecting equality and inclusion in its workforce and communities.
The discrimination, bullying and harassment of anyone because of their sexual
orientation or gender identity must be tackled with dedication and determination.

People who demonstrate gender fluidity or who are being open for the first time
about their sexual orientation can be among the most vulnerable that police must
protect. A homophobic, biphobic or transphobic incident is any incident perceived as
such by the victim or anyone else. Incidents can include abusive or threatening
language at work, in public places, or in private. A victim does not have to be
lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender. Crucially, it's how an incident is perceived by a
victim or anyone else that determines the nature of any crime.

If a child or young person is affected by a crime because of their sexual orientation
or gender identity, any police officer or member of police staff can help. Hampshire
Constabulary is able to strengthen this support with approximately 90 LAGLOs

If the reporting person wishes to remain anonymous, this request will be respected.
Non urgent matters should be reported by phoning 101. Mini-com users can phone
18001 101. In an emergency, always dial 999. Information can be given

anonymously by phoning the independent Crimestoppers charity on 111 555 0800.

16
Page 22


http://www.kromalgbt.org.uk/

Appendix i

Third Party Reporting Centres for reporting hate crime

It is widely accepted that hate crimes are under reported. Not all victims are
comfortable with reporting their experiences directly to the police. Possible reasons
for this may include:

Lack of awareness of ways to report hate crime

Victims find visiting police stations intimidating or daunting

Victims believe the police won’t believe them or take them seriously
Individuals are unaware they are victims of hate crimes

Lack of support to help victims make a report, e.g. interpreters
Victims fear being outed in terms of their sexuality or disability

Third Party Reporting Centres (TPRCs) overcome these barriers by providing an
alternative to directly reporting to the police, without which a number of hate
incidents and crimes would never be reported or recorded.

Further information is available on the link below, including the location of TPRCs

https://www.hampshire-pcc.gov.uk/hatecrime/third-party-reporting-centres

17
Page 23


https://www.hampshire-pcc.gov.uk/hatecrime/third-party-reporting-centres

Appendix ii

LGBT+ What Does that little + cover?

Glossary of terms

This is a list of some of the words and phrases that can be associated with people
who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or questioning (LGBTQ). It covers terms
related to sexual orientation and gender identity.

Ally

Generally used to describe a person who supports equal civil rights, LGBTQ and
gender equality, LGBTQ social movements, and who challenges homophobia,
biphobia and transphobia.

Androgyne

Being androgyne means that your gender identity is androgynous — both male and
female.

Androsexual

Being androsexual means you only have sexual feelings towards men, regardless of
your own gender.

Asexual

Being asexual means you are not interested in, or do not desire, sexual activity with
anyone of any gender.

Binary gender system

A system that forces people into one of two categories — either male or female (man
or woman, boy or girl). In this system men and women are also generally expected
to look and behave in a particular way.

Biphobia
The dislike, fear or hatred of people who are bisexual.
Bisexual

Being bisexual means you are emotionally and physically attracted to more than one
gender — in most cases, this means both girls/women and boys/men.

18
Page 24



Appendix ii

Cisgender

Being cisgender means that your gender identity matches the gender you were
assigned at birth.

Coming out

Acknowledging to yourself or to others that you are lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender or questioning (LGBTQ).

Demisexual

Being demisexual means you need to form a strong emotional connection with
someone before you will find them attractive sexually.

Discrimination

When you are treated less favourably than someone else because of something
about you, such as your real or perceived sexual orientation.

Gay

Being gay means you are emotionally and physically attracted to someone of the
same sex or gender. It is generally used to refer to boys or men who are emotionally
and physically attracted to other boys or men. Some girls and women prefer to refer
to themselves as gay rather than lesbian.

Gender capitalist

A person who recognises there are certain advantages and disadvantages to being a
specific sex or gender and capitalises on that theory.

Gender identity
A person’s perception of their own gender.
Genderfluid

Someone or something that is genderfluid has a flexible definition of gender. For
example, this could mean a country or community that recognises more than two
genders. Or it could refer to a person who does not identify with a single gender, or
who moves between genders.

Genderless

Someone or something that has no gender identity.

19
Page 25



Appendix ii

Gender stereotype

The assumption that people of a particular gender must carry out distinct roles, or act
in a specific way.

Genderqueer

Being genderqueer usually means the same thing as having a non-binary gender —
your gender identity is neither exclusively male nor exclusively female.

Gender variant

People who are gender variant can identify as both sexes and may present
themselves in a way that’s unusual for most people of their biological sex. They
could be androgynous (both male and female), or identify as a masculine female or
feminine male.

Gynsexual

Being gynsexual means you only have sexual feelings towards women, regardless of
your own gender.

Heterosexual

Being heterosexual means you are emotionally and physically attracted to people of
the opposite sex or gender. Another commonly used word for this is ‘straight’.

Heterosexism

A system of beliefs and behaviours based on the assumption that heterosexuality is
better than homosexuality. This is very closely related to homophobia.

Homophobia

The dislike, fear or hatred of people who are gay or lesbian. It is often used to
describe prejudice towards bisexual and transgender people too, but the terms
biphobia and transphobia are becoming more commonly used.

Homophobic bullying

Homophobic bullying is when someone’s actual or perceived LGBTQ sexual
orientation or non-binary gender identity is used to exclude, threaten, hurt or
humiliate them.

Homosexual

Being homosexual means you are emotionally or physically attracted to people of the
same sex. These days people who are lesbian, gay or bisexual (LGB) rarely use this
term to describe themselves. This is because it has historically been used to

20
Page 26


http://www.barnardos.org.uk/what_we_do/our_work/lgbtq/young-people/lgbtq-terminology.htm#biphobia
http://www.barnardos.org.uk/what_we_do/our_work/lgbtq/young-people/lgbtq-terminology.htm#transphobia

Appendix ii
medicalise or criminalise LGB people. The terms lesbian, gay and bisexual are
generally preferable.

Internalised homophobia

Negative feelings that a person has about being gay, lesbian or bisexual themselves.
This can affect the way they see themselves.

Intersex

Someone who is intersex is born with sexual anatomy, reproductive organs and/or
chromosome patterns that do not fit into the typical definition of a male or female
biological sex.

Lesbian

Being a lesbian means you are a girl or woman who is emotionally and physically
attracted to other girls or women.

LGBT
Acronym for lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender.
LGBTQ

Acronym for lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or questioning. A general term
commonly used in European Union countries.

Non-binary gender

A gender that is neither exclusively male nor exclusively female. This can also be
known as genderqueer.

Out
Being open about your sexual orientation or transgender identity.
Pansexual

Someone who is pansexual is not limited in sexual choice based on biological sex,
gender or gender identity.

Polysexual

Similar in meaning to pansexual. Someone who is polysexual is not limited in sexual
choice with regard to biological sex, gender or gender identity.

Pride festival

An annual festival to celebrate being lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender or
questioning.

21
Page 27



Appendix ii

Queer

Identifying as queer means that you don’t want your sexual orientation to be reduced
to a specific term, such as heterosexual, homosexual or bisexual. Lots of different
people identify as queer, and many of them think the binary gender system is too
limiting. This term is also often used by and about people who are traditionally seen
as lesbian or gay.

Questioning

Someone who is questioning in relation to LGBTQ issues is still establishing their
sexual and/or gender identity.

Sex

A person’s biological sex is indicated by their genitals, internal reproductive system,
chromosomes and secondary sexual characteristics, such as breasts, facial and
body hair, voice and body shape. In the context of gender identity, sex is often used
to mean biological sex rather than the act of having sex.

Sexual orientation

A term used to describe who a person is emotionally and physically attracted to. For
example, a person who is attracted to the opposite sex or gender might describe
their sexual orientation as straight.

Sexuality

Everybody has a sexuality — it describes a person’s sexual experiences and
expression. It includes a person’s sexual orientation, sexual practice and behaviour.
It also involves cultural and social expectations and behaviours.

Skoliosexual

Being skoliosexual means you have a potential sexual attraction to people who have
a non-binary gender identity. This is an inclusive term and doesn’t generally describe
an attraction to specific genitalia or birth assignments.

Straight

Being straight means you are emotionally and physically attracted to people of the
opposite gender.

Trans

This is a general term that applies to a range of people whose gender identity or
gender expression differs in some way from the assumptions made about them
when they were born. This includes men and women who are transgender, people
who are intersex, androgyne or polygender, and people who cross-dress.

22
Page 28



Appendix ii

Transgender/transsexual

Being transgender or transsexual means that you feel that your personal gender
identity does not fit with either your biological sex, or with the expectations that
society puts onto your gender.

Transman

A person who was born female, and sees themselves as male. Their gender identity
is male.

Transperson

A person who chooses not to conform with, or doesn't fit in with, a binary gender
system. They may identify as a transman or transwoman, or as something else
entirely, such as genderqueer. There are many different trans identities, and trans
does not only refer to people who have had (or want to have) gender-reassignment
surgery.

Transphobia
The dislike, fear or hatred of people who are transgender.
Transwoman

A person who was born male, and sees themselves as female. Their gender identity
is female.

23
Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



. Hampshire

Services

SERVICES FOR SCHOOLS

Hampshire:
a safe place to learn,
a safe place to grow

LGBT+ guidance for
Hampshire schools and
colleges

June 2018

2 Hampshire Page 31
@ County Council www.hants.gov.uk


http://www.hants.gov.uk

Contents

Foreword

Purpose of this document

Supporting LGBT+ rights

Teaching the Equality Act in primary schools

Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils
Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

The different ways schools can celebrate LGBT+ diversity

The school ethos and curriculum
Crestwood Community School sample lessons

Introduction to Y Services Hampshire and Isle of Wight: Schools
and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights

Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charters of Rights
Accreditation: making it real
Local support for schools

Appendix 1: Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights audit
tool

Appendix 2: Example of a school survey

Appendix 3: Example of a school policy document

Appendix 5: Ofsted good practice example
Appendix 6: Additional references for staff
Appendix 6: Terminology

Appendix 7: Acknowledgements

Appendix 9: What next?

Page 32

10
11
16
20

22
24

43
44

48
49

55
60
63

72
78
79
84
86



Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place
to grow

Hampshire County Council LGBT+ guidance for Hampshire schools
and colleges

Foreword

Ensuring the wellbeing of all Hampshire children and young people is a top priority for Hampshire
County Council. We are also ambitious in our continuing efforts to support schools in creating a
truly inclusive ethos and one which celebrates diversity in all forms.

To this end, | recommend to you all this important guidance, Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a
safe place to grow.

There are already some excellent examples of inclusive practice in many Hampshire schools
regarding the support that is offered to the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender community and
all people no matter how they define themselves (LGBT+). Schools have an important
responsibility to ensure the wellbeing of children and young people and, indeed, everyone in the
school community. Whilst there are statutory obligations, particularly in relation to the Equality Act
2010, it is right that schools reflect wider societal attitudes and values. Schools are well placed to
both recognise the complex nature of our society and celebrate the diversity of pupils and the
wider community.

It is my hope that schools will use this guidance to inform their approaches, so that every pupil
develops the competencies and the confidence to respect, embrace and celebrate difference.

oL e,
-

Roy Perry

Leader of Hampshire County Council

Page 33

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow o



Purpose of this document

Hampshire County Council is committed to an inclusive education service that promotes equality
and embraces diversity by supporting lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender (LGBT+) pupils and
staff.

The National LGB&T Partnership published a report in August 2017 on The mental health of
young people. This report demonstrated that LGBT+ young people have higher rates of poor
mental health than their non-LGBT+ peers. LGBT+ people under 35 are twice as likely to report a
mental health problem. These young people have specific support needs in developing and
recovering good mental health. Schools are being challenged to provide a good framework of
identification and support for all pupils in relation to mental health, including the appointment of a
designated lead for mental health (a mental health champion). It is vital that the needs of LGBT+
young people are considered in schools’ approaches to good mental health initiatives.

There are a few excellent examples of guidance that have been published in the United Kingdom
(UK), notably, the Trans inclusion toolkit (Brighton and Hove, 2013) and Schools transgender
guidance (Cornwall, 2015). The Department for Education (DfE) and Government Equalities Office
publication Inspiring equality in education (2016) also provides some excellent guidance around
issues of sexuality and gender identity, particularly in tackling homophobic and transphobic
bullying.

Although these documents have been and continue to be of vital importance to all schools, it
became clear that Hampshire merited its own guidance in order to reflect the needs and concerns
of the LGBT+ community within the county and to ensure that all Hampshire schools are offered
the most up-to-date information, guidance and support. This will help all schools develop an
inclusive ethos designed to celebrate diversity and to ensure that all members of the school
community (particularly children and young people) are able to thrive. Such an ethos will be
reflected in the school curriculum, policies, staff attitudes and support structures and systems.

To this end, a task and finish group was created in the autumn of 2016 with the stated aim of
providing a package of guidance and a charter that would support all Hampshire schools in
developing an inclusive ethos and to embed the best practice. The guidance aims to:

e provide practical information in regard to supporting the emotional health and wellbeing of all
members of the school community, including LGBT+ pupils and staff

e ensure that teachers and governors receive high-quality advice, support and professional
development in all matters relating to LGBT+

« build on the good practice that already exists in Hampshire schools, particularly in developing
a rights respecting ethos and the promotion of British values (the values we ascribe to as a
liberal democracy) through spiritual, moral, social and cultural (SMSC) education

e support schools in developing a culture and environment that celebrates diversity and values
each and every member of the school community

e support schools in developing a curriculum that will give all pupils a voice, challenge
stereotypes and create and sustain effective policies, such as anti-bullying

Page 34

, Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Purpose of this document

e enable schools to develop an inclusive and diverse ethos in respect to the Equality Act 2010.

The Equality Act 2010 legally protects people from discrimination in the workplace and in wider
society. It replaced anti-discrimination laws with a single act, making the law easier to understand
and strengthening protection in some situations.

The Act defines protected characteristics. It is against the law to discriminate against anyone
because of:

e age
e becoming a transsexual person

e being married or in a civil partnership

e being pregnant or on maternity leave

« disability

e race, including colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin

« religion, belief or lack of religion/belief

e SeX

e sexual orientation.

People with protected characteristics are protected from discrimination:
e atwork

in education

as a consumer

when using public services

when buying or renting a property

as a member or a guest of a private club or association.

As a school, you must not:

« discriminate against a pupil or prospective pupil because of their disability, race, sex, gender
reassignment, religion or belief, or sexual orientation

e harass or victimise a pupil or prospective pupil.

Page 35

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow o



Purpose of this document

You must not discriminate against a person in relation to the following activities:

admission to your school

the provision of education to pupils
access to any benefit, facility or service
exclusion from school

by subjecting a pupil to any other detriment.

For more information, see sections on Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of
pupils (page 11) and Teaching the Equality Act in primary schools (page 10). The Equality Act
(advice for schools) can be found at:

www.qgov.uk/government/publications/equality-act-2010-advice-for-schools.

The Hampshire County Council summary of the Act (what it means for schools) can be found at:

www3.hants.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-briefing-for-schools.doc.

Page 36

o Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/equality-act-2010-advice-for-schools
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-briefing-for-schools.doc

The Government Equalities Office published a report in 2014, Tackling homophobic, biphobic and
transphobic bullying among school age children and young people. It stated:

“... far too many schools lack confidence to deal with this form of bullying, are unsure how to
address it and feel under-resourced ...”

The Ofsted school inspection framework, 2015-2017 states:

“Inspectors will assess the extent to which the school or provider complies with relevant legal
duties as set out in the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 1998, promotes equality of
opportunity and takes positive steps to prevent any form of discrimination, either direct or indirect,
against those with protected characteristics in all aspects of their work.”

The framework continues:

“Inspectors will make a judgement on the effectiveness of leadership and management by
evaluating the extent to which leaders, managers and governors ... actively promote equality and
diversity, tackle bullying and discrimination and narrow any gaps in achievement between different
groups of children and learners”

And ...

“... promote all forms of equality and foster greater understanding of and respect for people of all
faiths (and those of no faith), races, genders, ages, disability and sexual orientations (and other
groups with protected characteristics'), through their words, actions and influence within the
school and more widely in the community ...”

The key words and phrases from these extracts are “... takes positive steps to prevent any form of
discrimination ...” and “... actively promote equality and diversity”. This implies that issues around
inclusion are more than just a policy-writing exercise. It is important that schools are able to
develop a culture and ethos that embrace diversity and that this is reflected in the day-to-day life
and working of the school. This guidance seeks to support this aim.

Schools need reassurance that they are interpreting sometimes complex regulations correctly,
therefore, these guidelines draw extensively from the Equality Act of 2010, the current Ofsted
framework and various departmental advice for schools, including Promoting fundamental British
values as part of SMSC in schools (2014) and Keeping children safe in education (2015 — updated
2017).

! This is from the Equality Act 2010.

Page 37
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow °



Supporting LGBT+ rights

Supporting LGBT+ rights

In 1989, governments across the world adopted the United Nations Convention on the Rights of
the Child (UNCRC), recognising that all children have the right to be treated with dignity and
fairness, to be protected, to develop to their full potential and to participate. The convention sets
out the civil, political, economic, social and cultural rights that everyone under 18 is entitled to. It
states what countries must do to ensure that all children can enjoy their rights, regardless of whom
they are or where they are from.

The UN General Assembly adopted the convention in 1989 and it was ratified by the UK in 1991.
It is the most widely adopted international human rights treaty and as such provides us with a
global values framework that transcends race, culture or religion.

Governments have the lead responsibility for the realisation of children’s rights and all adults —
including teachers, social workers, doctors and parents — have a responsibility to respect and
advocate for these rights.

It is crucial that children and young people learn about and understand their rights and know who
is responsible for making rights a reality. It is the duty of government, schools and the media to
facilitate this.

The convention also confirms that children are active participants so governments and adults must
create opportunities for them to play an active role in the realisation of their rights.

Article 2 of the UNCRC states that: “children’s rights should be respected and ensured without
discrimination of any kind”.

However, discrimination and prejudice towards LGBT+ people, combined with a general lack of
knowledge about LGBT+ issues still exists. School should be an environment where that is
challenged and LGBT+ young people feel safe and supported.

“School Report 2017, a study of over 3,700 lesbian, gay, bi and trans (LGBT) pupils across
Britain, demonstrates the continued impact of this work. Since the 2007 School Report, the
number of lesbian, gay and bi pupils bullied because of their sexual orientation has fallen by
almost a third. The number of schools who say this bullying is wrong has nearly trebled, and
homophobic remarks are far less likely to be heard. Thanks to the dedication of teachers, schools
and governments across Britain, more LGBT young people than ever are able to be themselves at
school.

“But while there is much to celebrate, this study shows how much there is left to do. Nearly half of
LGBT young people are still bullied for being LGBT at school, and only one in five have learnt
about safe sex in relation to same-sex relationships at school. LGBT young people continue to
experience unacceptably high levels of poor mental health. Online, nearly all LGBT pupils are
exposed to offensive content about LGBT people, and just one in three think that online
companies will do something about it if reported.

“For trans pupils in particular, the findings are alarming: nearly two in three trans pupils are bullied
for being LGBT at school, one in 10 have received death threats, and more than two in five have
tried to take their own lives. While a growing number of schools are supporting their trans pupils,
too many are not equipped to do so. It is vital that this is remedied as a matter of urgency.

Page 38
° Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Supporting LGBT+ rights

“At the same time, LGBT young people who are disabled, or who receive free school meals, are at
heightened risk of being bullied and experiencing poor mental health. LGBT young people who
are black, Asian and minority ethnic are particularly unlikely to have someone at home they can
talk to about being LGBT, while bi and trans young people suffer from a persistent lack of role
models at school. It is clear that much remains to be done until every young person in Britain can
grow up free to reach their full potential.

“But while the challenges that remain are significant, there is cause for optimism. Thanks to
government and cross-party support, compulsory relationships and sex education (RSE) is set to
become a reality in England’s schools. This is a vital step towards ensuring that all young people
are equipped to make informed decisions about their lives and relationships. It is crucial that
updated RSE guidance explicitly includes LGBT young people, and is supported by high-quality
resources and training for teachers.”

School report: the experiences of lesbian, gay, bi and trans young people in Britain’s schools in
2017, Stonewall

Hampshire County Councils’ Children and young people’s plan has as one of its priorities:

“Promote RRE (UNCRC) to help children become responsible citizens, understand and promote
their own rights and responsibilities and respect the rights of others”.

Rights Respecting Education (RRE) as a vehicle for interpreting and upholding the UNCRC
continues in many Hampshire schools.

The values framework of the UNCRC helps to promote a more positive school culture. It is one in
which pupils feel safe, respected and valued, where the relationships between teachers and pupils
are supportive, where trust and learning flourishes. This is the main reason why RRE has the
impact it has on progress and performance. It establishes all the factors associated with the
optimum climate for learning and the pedagogy associated with effective teaching whilst
supporting the emotional health and wellbeing of all its pupils.

One of the key drivers for the convention is participation, which ensures that children and young
people are empowered and given a voice in society and to have that voice heard and taken
seriously.

Those schools in Hampshire following an RRE approach encourage pupils to develop charters
based on the UNCRC to promote a rights respecting culture within their school community.

Creating a charter or agreement can be helpful in making the UNCRC a real and meaningful guide
to action for adults and children on a day-to-day basis. It also helps everyone to learn more about
particular articles of the convention that impact most on their life at school. The initial process of
creating the charter/agreement and its subsequent use should be inclusive and participatory. The
process in itself is beneficial as it can help to unite pupils and adults in the class and strengthen
relationships between them. The charter/agreement can help to develop a sense of shared
ownership of the classroom and learning. Once developed, it becomes a point of reference for the
class and once signed by the teacher, support staff and pupils, it can act as the social glue which
binds everyone together.

A charter that is visible and integrated into the life of the school is one of the many ways that
adults can advocate for the rights of the young people in their community. Vulnerable groups can

Page 39

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow o



Supporting LGBT+ rights

be empowered using charters which give them a voice that is recognised and enables their rights

to be realised.

A copy of the UNCRC can be accessed using the following link: www.unicef.org.uk/wp-content/

uploads/2010/05/UNCRC summary-1.pdf.

The Charter of Rights developed by the Y Services for Young People LGBT+ project included on
pages 44-46 is underpinned by the following articles from the UNCRC:

Article 1 (definition of the child)

Everyone under the age of 18 has all the rights in
the convention.

Article 13 (freedom of expression)

Every child must be free to express their thoughts
and opinions and to access all kinds of
information, as long as it is within the law.

Article 2 (non-discrimination)

The convention applies to every child without
discrimination, whatever their ethnicity, gender,
religion, language, abilities or any other status,
whatever they think or say, whatever their family
background.

Article 14 (freedom of thought, belief and religion)

Every child has the right to think and believe what
they choose and also to practise their religion, as
long as they are not stopping other people from
enjoying their rights. Governments must respect
the rights and responsibilities of parents to guide
their child as they grow up.

Article 3 (best interests of the child)

The best interests of the child must be a top
priority in all decisions and actions that affect
children.

Article 15 (freedom of association)

Every child has the right to meet with other
children and to join groups and organisations, as
long as this does not stop other people from
enjoying their rights.

Article 6 (life, survival and development)

Every child has the right to life. Governments must
do all they can to ensure that children survive and
develop to their full potential.

Article 16 (right to privacy)

Every child has the right to privacy. The law
should protect the child’'s private, family and home
life, including protecting children from unlawful
attacks that harm their reputation.

Article 12 (respect for the views of the child)

Every child has the right to express their views,
feelings and wishes in all matters affecting them,
and to have their views considered and taken
seriously. This right applies at all times, for
example during immigration proceedings, housing
decisions or the child’s day-to-day home life.

Article 17 (access to information from the media)

Every child has the right to reliable information
from a variety of sources, and governments should
encourage the media to provide information that
children can understand. Governments must help
protect children from materials that could harm
them.

Page 40

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.unicef.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2010/05/UNCRC_summary-1.pdf
http://www.unicef.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2010/05/UNCRC_summary-1.pdf

Supporting LGBT+ rights

Article 19 (protection from violence, abuse and
neglect)

Governments must do all they can to ensure that
children are protected from all forms of violence,
abuse, neglect and bad treatment by their parents
or anyone else who looks after them.

Article 31 (leisure, play and culture)

Every child has the right to relax, play and take
part in a wide range of cultural and artistic
activities.

Article 24 (health and health services)

Every child has the right to the best possible
health. Governments must provide good quality
health care, clean water, nutritious food, and a
clean environment and education on health and
wellbeing so that children can stay healthy. Richer
countries must help poorer countries achieve this.

Article 34 (sexual exploitation)

Governments must protect children from all forms
of sexual abuse and exploitation.

Article 25 (review of treatment in care)

If a child has been placed away from home for the
purpose of care or protection (for example, with a
foster family or in hospital), they have the right to a
regular review of their treatment, the way they are
cared for and their wider circumstances.

Article 41 (respect for higher national standards)

If a country has laws and standards that go further
than the present convention, then the country
must keep these laws.

Article 28 (right to education)

Every child has the right to an education. Primary
education must be free and different forms of
secondary education must be available to every
child. Discipline in schools must respect children’s
dignity and their rights. Richer countries must help
poorer countries achieve this.

Article 42 (knowledge of rights)

Governments must actively work to make sure
children and adults know about the convention.

Article 29 (goals of education)

Education must develop every child’s personality,
talents and abilities to the full. It must encourage
the child’s respect for human rights, as well as
respect for their parents, their own and other
cultures, and the environment.

Page 41

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Teaching the Equality Act in primary schools

Teaching the Equality Act in primary schools

In his book No outsiders in our school, Andrew Moffatt (Speechmark Publishing, 2017) makes an
impassioned plea for schools to develop their teaching around LGBT as part of their overall
approach to teaching diversity and inclusion:

“No longer should we separate LGBT education from education about other equalities; equality is
best taught in the context of British law, where all protected characteristics of the Equality Act
2010 are included in a curriculum that celebrates difference. So not only are people of different
sexual orientations welcome in our primary school, people of different ethnicities, genders, gender
identities, religions, ages and abilities are also most welcome. There are no outsiders in our
school ...”

Andrew Moffatt illustrates this point by providing a clear framework in establishing a no outsiders
ethos, including suggestions for assemblies, ways to engage parents and carers (including
answers to challenging questions) and raising ideas about supporting all members of the school
community who may wish to come out in a school environment. The book also includes a
comprehensive book list and suggestions for associated learning objectives in lessons around
equality and diversity. Some of these books are included in the appendices of this guidance
resource.

Please see www.equalitiesprimary.com or contact Email: andy@equalitiesprimary.com for more
advice and information.

Ofsted have cited the No outsiders approach as part of their Good practice examples (October
2014, No: 140168). This paper describes the work of the Jenny Hammond School in Leytonstone,
East London. The example shows how the school (where 28 languages are spoken) has used
age-appropriate literature and related activities to promote tolerance and respect. It also shows
how it has created a school community that values and celebrates the fact that we are all different.
The school was one of the first to become part of the No outsiders project and has been at the
forefront of work in challenging homophobia. This approach has enabled social and emotional
development to take place naturally alongside the development of literacy skills. (See Appendix
5)

Page 42
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.equalitiesprimary.com
mailto:andy@equalitiesprimary.com

Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils

Schools and issues around transgender
discrimination of pupils

School leaders have been asking for clarification of the legal issues around gender identity
including transgender and gender variant identity. In some cases, schools have been faced with
the accusation that they are somehow discriminating against cis-gender or non-LGBT+ pupils.

Cornwall Council, in collaboration with the Intercom Trust and Devon and Cornwall Police, has
produced an excellent resource, Schools transgender guidance (2015). We are very pleased to
have their permission to reproduce some of the advice and guidance contained in their book.

The following has been taken directly from the Cornwall guidance. We reproduce this section in
full because it gives such clarity regarding legal obligations:

“Legislation that informs the participation of trans (including gender variant) pupils and students in
schools and colleges includes the Human Rights Act 1998, Gender Recognition Act 2004 and the
Equality Act 2010.

The Human Rights Act 1998

“The following articles from The Human Rights Act 1998 support the rights and needs of trans
people to live their lives in their true gender.

Article 8: right to respect for private life and family life.
Article 10: freedom of expression.

Article 14: the prohibition of discrimination.

The Gender Recognition Act 2004

“The Gender Recognition Act 2004 is mainly concerned with the process by which a person can
get a Gender Recognition Certificate, and correct their original birth certificate to match their true
gender. This can only occur after a person reaches 18 years of age but is something that many
younger people may aspire to.

“(Note: At the time of production/publication, the second reading of the Gender Identity Bill was
due before Parliament. This bill proposes that any individual can choose their gender identity,
negating the requirement for a GRC.)

The Equality Act 2010
“The Equality Act 2010 ensures legal protection against discrimination (direct or indirect) for

everyone under the nine protected characteristics defined in the Act, one of which is gender
reassignment (also known as transgender).

Page 43

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow g



Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils

“Part 6 of the Equality Act 2010 makes it clear that the Act specifically refers to schools and young
people.

“The Equality Act 2010 (2:1:7) states that: ‘A person has the protected characteristic of gender
reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone a process (or
part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person’s sex by changing physiological or
other attributes of sex.’

“The act applies to employment, education and a range of other areas where discrimination may
take place. In order to be protected under the Act, a pupil will not necessarily have to be
undergoing a medical procedure to change their sex, but they must be taking steps to live in the
opposite gender, or be proposing to do so.

Discrimination

“The Equality Act 2010 ensures legal protection against discrimination in employment, education,
the provision of services and the delivery of public functions, in relation to the nine protected
characteristics defined in the Act, one of which is gender reassignment. The legislation lays down
that a school must not discriminate against a pupil because of their transgender status.
Discrimination can be direct or indirect. Indirect discrimination occurs when a provision, criterion or
practice applies to everyone but puts a person with a particular protected characteristic at a
particular disadvantage, and it can’t be justified as a proportionate means of meeting a legitimate
aim. An example might be an inflexible school uniform rule which offers no unisex options such as
trousers for girls, and which would therefore create a particular difficulty for an F2M (female to
male) pupil.

“Unlike most of the protected characteristics, such as sex, race and religion, but like disability, this
protection works in one direction only — not being transgendered is not a protected
characteristic. Schools are therefore free to take special steps to meet the needs of trans pupils
without being accused of discriminating against pupils who are not trans. There is no legal
requirement, as there is for disability, to make reasonable adjustments for trans pupils, but
schools may take a similar approach to ensure that trans pupils are properly catered for, and
some of the possible steps discussed in this document are described as reasonable adjustments.
How this is done in practice may differ between schools as facilities and curriculums do vary, but
should be worked towards, for the benefit of both school and pupils.

“The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED), at Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires public
bodies to consider all individuals when carrying out their day-to-day work — in shaping policy, in
delivering services and in relation to their own employees. It requires public bodies — including
schools — when carrying out their activities to have due regard to the need to:

e eliminate discrimination
e advance equality of opportunity

« foster good relations between different people.

“The duty for schools in relation to pupils applies to all the protected characteristics except age.

“The school’s governing body has a responsibility to ensure that the school is complying with its
requirements under the Equality Act.

Page 44

o Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils

“Schools have to publish information to show how they are complying with the duty, and equality
objectives. Unlike earlier equality duties the PSED does not require equality schemes to be
produced, although some schools may choose to continue their existing Single Equality Scheme.
It is also good practice for schools to keep a written record to show that they have actively
considered their equality duties in respect of all relevant protected characteristics, including
transgender, when making decisions or creating policies, and have asked themselves the relevant
guestions. Publishing this will help to demonstrate that the duty to have due regard to equality is
being fulfilled. There is no legal requirement to produce a formal equality analysis document;
although for key decisions this might be a helpful tool.”

Specific advice on the governing body duty under the PSED to publish equality objectives and
equality information is available via Hampshire Governor Services at:

Email: governors@hants.gov.uk.

It is also important to note that the key provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998, Gender
Recognition Act 2004 and Equality Act 2010 highlighted here also apply to schools in the context
of their role as employers. The legislation protects staff employed in schools and in some areas
prospective staff (including discrimination).

Toilets and changing facilities

Issues around the use of toilets are probably the cause of most discussion and debate around
transgender inclusion. It is important that all schools take a proactive stance regarding this issue,
ensuring that all pupils currently attending the school and all future pupils feel part of an inclusive
community.

Trans pupils often report that this is one of the most significant aspects of their experience in
school. If there are no proper facilities available, trans pupils may be vulnerable to unwanted
attention, and possible bullying and even assault. Of course, schools with a supportive, inclusive
ethos where diversity is celebrated (such as a No outsiders policy) are places where such
negative experiences are less likely.

What's in a name?

Any solutions will depend on the existing arrangements and facilities in each school. Many
schools are providing toilets and changing facilities that are unisex. This represents an ideal
situation, but many schools are currently not able to provide such facilities. All schools do,
however, have accessible toilets, often designated for disabled members of the school
community. A simple renaming process can help to extend this well established aspect of school
inclusion. Unisex accessible toilets or even a simple Changing room or Toilet can all be utilised
and can help to:

“... reduce what is often perceived as the stigma of using toilets commonly identified as Disabled
toilet ... ensuring schools and colleges respect the dignity and privacy of both trans pupils and
students and also pupils and students with disabilities, whilst both ensuring everyone’s safety and
protecting their self respect ...”

Schools transgender guidance, Cornwall Council

Page 45

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


mailto:governors@hants.gov.uk

Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils

It's important to note that this is more than just a new label on a toilet door. New labels need to be
seen in the context of a whole-school approach to inclusion and diversity. Over time, the use of
these facilities will be unquestioned and the hope is that schools will continue to develop their
physical environments to reflect a diverse and inclusive society.

The physical environment, including toilet facilities

Several guidance documents contain valuable information regarding the physical environment and
associated procedures that enable equal access to all aspects of school life for transgender
pupils. Both the Cornish Schools transgender guidance and the Brighton and Hove Trans
inclusion toolkit offer practical advice in this area.

Sports and physical education are key aspects of the National Curriculum and the physical and
mental wellbeing of young people. Physical education develops pupils’ competence and their
confidence to take part in a range of physical activities that become a central part of their lives,
both in and out of school. LGBT+ pupils have the same right to physical education and fithess as
other young people.

Issues to consider and manage include:

e male-to-female sports participants, particularly as puberty develops, may have a physical
advantage over other girls

e physical risk in contact sports can be mitigated. Discussion, where appropriate, with the pupil
and parents/carers can help to set expectations

o changing facilities will need to be managed with sensitivity, particularly at competitive and
representative levels. For instance, when taking part in tournaments or competitions at other
schools, staff would need to ensure provision has been made for any trans participant.
Advance planning is of vital importance in order to prevent any potential distress or loss of
dignity

« for various sports, check with the national governing bodies. Some are developing advice and
information regarding transgender pupils’ participation in competitive sports

o female-to-male participation in some sports, particularly contact sports, may not be an issue
at primary level, but may become increasingly so in secondary sports, eg rugby or football.
The Football Association has a whole policy dedicated to trans people in football. This
document contains the following rule regarding under-18 football:

“...Pursuant to FA Rule C4(A)(xiii) on mixed football, any person playing football in the age ranges

under 7 to under 18 may play in a match involving boys and girls, without restriction. There are,

therefore, no conditions regarding any individual playing in a match under their reassigned/
affirmed gender in these age ranges ...”

See: www.thefa.com/football-rules-governance/policies/equality/lgbt-football.

The England Rugby Association also has a policy document relating to trans people’s participation
in sport:

See: www.englandrugby.com/about-the-rfu/rfu-inclusion-programmes/gender/.

Page 46

b Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.thefa.com/football-rules-governance/policies/equality/lgbt-football
http://www.englandrugby.com/about-the-rfu/rfu-inclusion-programmes/gender/

Schools and issues around transgender discrimination of pupils

For policies, advice and information about international sporting organisations and their various
policies, see: www.transathlete.com/policies-by-organization.

The Cornish guidance indicates:

“Whilst schools are advised to be cognisant of the advice of various sporting bodies, which do
have more issues with male-to-female participation than female-to-male, they are also
encouraged to treat each case individually and sensitively and to have liaison with families and
carers through this process ...”

Page 47

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.transathlete.com/policies-by-organization

Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

Schools that are able to raise awareness effectively of LGBT+ lives will be schools that celebrate
diversity and have an ethos of openness. Individual children and young people who have
guestions regarding their sexuality and/or gender are more likely to approach members of staff
with any matters they wish to discuss. This formal and informal dialogue will help to create a safe
space.

It is important to remember that pupils may be reluctant to report discrimination or prejudice
because this may imply coming out or being seen as not being able to take a joke. Pupils will be
more willing to report issues if a school is seen as a safe space. This also applies to all issues
around safeguarding.

All staff have a duty of care to all pupils and this includes issues around confidentiality. Young
people must feel assured that anything they say to a member of staff will be dealt with sensitively
and appropriately. As with so many other aspects of diversity, staff training and development is a
crucial factor here. Many LGBT+ pupils are telling us the same thing ... They want staff in schools
to be far more aware and to have good training. There are often key individual members of staff
that LGBT+ pupils rely on for advice and support. This is to be applauded, but how much better it
would be if all schools ensured regular (annual?) continuous professional development for all
school staff in relation to LGBT+ and inclusion. Developing a safe space takes time and requires
regular support and training of staff, and is particularly important where there have been a number
of staff changes. Schools, therefore, need to also consider how they induct new members of staff
in the school’s approach and ethos to these matters.

Dealing with homophobic and transphobic bullying

A starting point for all schools when dealing with individual pupils in one-to-one support is the
relevant policies, such as the anti-bullying policy. Policies should have key principles that guide
the way staff behave and deal with each issue as it arises. The Inspiring equality in education
school resource (DfE, 2016) suggests the following approach when responding to a report of
homophobic or transphobic bullying:

e Be aware of non-verbal communication — body language can be misconstrued.
« Thank them for reporting the issue at the start of the conversation.

o Ensure the discussion takes place in a safe space, free from interruptions.

e Allow the pupil to talk and to describe what has happened.

« Before any confidential conversation remind them of your duty of care in regards to
safeguarding and child protection (you cannot make promises about not telling anyone if a
disclosure is made where you think the pupil is potentially at harm ... You are legally obliged
to act and to tell your designated safeguarding lead).

e Listen to what is being said in a non-judgemental way.

Page 48
b Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

« Do not assume that the young person is coming out because they are telling you they have
been the target of homophobic or transphobic bullying. The pupil may not be gay, bisexual or
transgender.

e Log the incident but also explain that this can be anonymised if they wish.
e Ask what they would like in support.

o Give them information about other avenues of support in and outside school, such as
counsellors, support groups.

e Thank them for talking with you (but do not say “confiding in you”).

Supporting pupils who are coming out or questioning their sexuality
and/or gender

Pupils should not feel any pressure to come out and it is important that any conversation that
takes place with someone who has questions about their identity is informed that they can do this
at their own pace. Confidentiality is absolutely the key ingredient here. If a young person has
chosen to share this personal issue with a member of staff it is important to provide affirmation
and support and to ensure that they feel in control.

Positive affirmation is crucial. Encourage the pupil to consider if they want anyone else to know ...
If not, that’s fine ... If yes, then who and when? These are tumultuous emotions, particularly for a
young person. Here are some points to consider in a coming out situation:

e Is there a sense of shame? If so, try to reassure that there is nothing wrong with being
LGBT. Individuals may have internalised feelings of homophobia or transphobia as a result of
negative depictions of LGBT+ people perpetuated by the media, society in general or within
the school environment. LGBT+ members of society have equal rights and these are
protected by law. Direct them to positive depictions and examples.

e Arethey unsure? Questioning? If so, reassure them that this is a perfectly normal aspect of
growing up and understanding their identity.

e Aretheyinvolved in sexual activity? If so, it is important to acknowledge your
responsibilities to both confidentiality and safeguarding: Are they capable of understanding
and consenting? The age of consent is 16, regardless of sexual orientation. If consent is not
an issue are they knowledgeable about sex, consent, sexual activity, risks and safer sex and
do they know where to go for advice? Note: Those under 13 years of age are not able to give
consent to any sexual activity. You must report any such activity to the designated
safeguarding lead.

Specifically, for pupils questioning their gender identity:

e Gender can be seen as a spectrum, beyond the typical definitions of male or female. Some
pupils may identify as gender fluid or genderless ... each pupil will be different in how they
identify at any particular time of their life.

Page 49
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow e



Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

e Some pupils may go on to transition, for instance from male to female or female to male. Itis
important to understand what this really means. Social transition can include changing
names, personal pronouns, clothes and use of facilities, such as toilets and changing rooms.
Medical transition involves a process of physical alteration, perhaps by using puberty-blocking
medication, hormonal adjustment treatment and gender reassignment surgery.

e Schools can support transgender pupils by acknowledging the shift in their needs and goals
over time. It is important to take the lead from the pupil at all times. A pupil support plan can
be drawn up which should reflect the needs and aspirations of the pupil. Where social
transition is happening, it is vital that all staff are briefed and trained so that support for the
pupil is consistent, for instance, use of pronouns, changes in school uniform, use of toilets
and changing facilities. Inspiring equality in education (DfE, 2016) has an excellent example
of a pupil gender transition support plan (1.22).

The Cornwall Council Schools transgender guidance has some excellent advice around school
uniform (page 21), changing names and exam registration and certificates (page 22), and, very
importantly, information about the administering of vaccinations (page 23).

The matter of children of LGBT+ parents

Where a school comes across this situation it is worth bearing in mind ... Is this a new situation for
the child? If there is a breakdown in the original family unit and one or both of the parent’s new
partners is same sex, this will mean that the child is faced with a possible double trauma. The first
being the breakdown of the family home and the second being the breakdown of their
understanding of what constitutes a family. These children are as vulnerable to homophobic
abuse as the chid who identifies as gay or who is questioning their sexuality. The child may not
have any other peers who share the same context that they find themselves in and this isolation
further singles them out as different. It could be helpful to have a Rainbow Alliance group for this
child to attend. It is possible that the child in this situation may demonstrate homophobic attitudes,
blaming all their ills on the nature of the relationship of the parents or wanting to set themselves as
far apart from LGBT+ people as possible. Pride days in school would go a long way to help these
children feel more secure in themselves.

The school needs to keep the lines of communication open with all sets of parents — so that the
parents can tell the school what is going on at home and the school can tell the parents what is
going on at school.

Intersectionality

The more we talk about LGBT+ matters the more we realise that LGBT+ is part of every walk of
life. That means that sometimes the other paths that children walk intersect in a negative way in
life, a kind of double jeopardy situation.

Imagine a child in care:

e separated from siblings

e possibly separated from friends from their original school

Page 50

@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Supporting individual pupils in a safe space

« worried that they might be discovered as being in care

« likely to keep relationships superficial — they will have missed the early forming stages of the
class relationships.

Added to the above the child knows themselves to be gay or trans.

« This might have been the factor that made relationships break down at home.
e They are already vulnerable because of their care status.
e The know that being LGBT+ is even lower in status.

e Nothing that the teachers say reflects their life or aspirations.

Result = disparate loneliness and the belief that no one will stand with you. Expect to be isolated
and bullied. Own isolation further compounds the sense of aloneness.

Intersectionality happens where two or more social deprivations come together in the same
person. It is not just about being LGBT+. Think of:

e poverty in a wealthy area

« different ethnicities within a predominantly white British environment
« differently abled people

o refugee

¢ Or moved into an new area.

These children need a space to simply be themselves, a chance to tell their story without fear of
ridicule or shame. A well-run Rainbow Alliance might just do the trick.

For more information about setting up a school Pride event, please see:

« Educate and Celebrate — http://www.educateandcelebrate.org/resources/

« Stonewall Education Resources — https://www.stonewall.org.uk/our-work/education-
resources.

Page 51

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


http://www.educateandcelebrate.org/resources/
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/our-work/education-resources
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/our-work/education-resources

The different ways schools can celebrate LGBT+ diversity

The different ways schools can celebrate
LGBT+ diversity

It's very clear that an increasing number of local authorities and schools are keen to embrace the
concept of diversity in its broadest sense, including the celebration of LGBT+ community. The
following councils and authorities have been flying the rainbow flag as part of Pride celebrations.
Schools should feel confident to join this celebration:

Local authorities

e Hampshire County Council (x2)
e Isle of Wight Council
e Portsmouth City Council

e Southampton City Council

District and borough councils

« East Hants District Council

« Eastleigh Borough Council

e Gosport Borough Council

e Hart District Council

e Havant Borough Council

e Rushmoor Borough Council

e Test Valley District Council (x2)
e Winchester Guildhall

e Winchester Mayor

Parish councils

e Elvetham Heath Parish Council

e Lindford Parish.

Set up a Rainbow Alliance group
An increasing number of Hampshire schools have a group set aside where pupils who see
themselves as LGBT or questioning, as well as straight allies, will meet for support and solidarity.

It is an informal space where the young people can have fun but where they can safely discuss
what is going on in their lives. The fact that this is open to straight pupils is important. These pupils

Page 52

» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The different ways schools can celebrate LGBT+ diversity

have a stronger voice when it comes to standing beside the LGBT pupils and saying that they are
all right. Also, at the early stage of questioning pupils may not feel that sure of what they feel.
These groups can be lead by a school councillor, an LGBT teacher — it doesn’t matter — what does
matter is that the leaders are on the side of the LGBT+ pupils and care about giving them a voice.

Organise a school day of Pride

This could be part of LGBT+ History Month (February) and linked with #PrideHantsWide or it could
be a summertime event when most Pride celebrations take place. The curriculum could have an
LGBT+ focus and assemblies could tell the hidden stories of LGBT+ people of the past and
present. Rainbow cake could be on sale and rainbow flags could be flown.

#PrideHantsWide

This is where a school holds an event to coincide with Hampshire Pride (basically the last full
week in February). Hampshire Pride invites councils, schools and businesses to join with it in
celebrating LGBT+ diversity in the Hampshire community. The minimum it asks for is for a flag to
be flown and a social media message to go out with the hashtag #PrideHantsWide. As an
example, amongst other activities, Kings’ School, Winchester, provided the Samba band as part of
the Hampshire Pride celebrations in 2018.

LGBT+ History Month

The whole of February is LGBT+ History Month so every day could have a different theme —
Stonewall and Educate and Celebrate have a lot of ideas and resources to help with this.

Page 53

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



The school ethos and curriculum

Schools should consider a number of factors when creating a new policy or reviewing an existing
policy. Do the relevant policies reflect diversity and promote an inclusive ethos? Some policies
have an obvious connection to LGBT+issues, such as safeguarding and anti-bullying, but there
are other policies that can reflect the diverse and rights respecting nature of the school, such as
the curriculum policy, sex and relationships (perhaps as part of personal development learning),
staff development, and the teaching and learning policy. Of equal importance is the question of
who is consulted during policy making. Does it involve everyone in the school community? These
matters equally apply to any policies in relation to staff as to those in relation to pupils. Here are a
few more questions to ask when writing and reviewing policies:

e Does the policy reflect difference in all its forms?
e Do policies contribute to preventing all forms of bullying and do they challenge prejudice?

e Do policies go beyond just satisfying statutory duties? Do they also enhance the unique
characteristics and philosophy of the school?

« Do policies satisfy the needs of all pupils and all staff?
e Do policy aims require specific professional development opportunities?

« Have the children and young people been consulted? (When was the last time the school
conducted a pupil survey?)

« How will you engage with staff regarding the policy?

e Do relevant policies explicitly reference LGBT+ pupils and/or staff, including homophobic,
biphobic and transphobic bullying and discrimination?

e Are policies promoted and shared with everyone in the school community ... Most
importantly, pupils, parents and carers?

As with policy development, there are some aspects of the curriculum that provide obvious
opportunities for promoting and exploring issues of diversity, including LGBT+ isues. Personal,
social and health education (PSHE, sometimes known as personal development learning or PDL),
citizenship, sex and relationship education (SRE) and philosophy and religious education are all
notable examples.

It is worth exploring how LGBT+ issues can be incorporated in a cross-curricular approach to
learning, perhaps as part of the spiritual, moral, social and cultural thread that runs throughout
school life. In the taught curriculum this would include all subjects. The DfE and Government

Page 54

b Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

Equalities Office publication, Inspiring equality in education (2016), has some excellent examples
of cross-curricular learning as a starting point for schools (pages 1.16 and 1.17), but we are also
pleased to offer some examples in personal development learning from Hampshire schools on the

following pages.

Page 55
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow e



The school ethos and curriculum

Crestwood Community School sample
lessons

Teacher notes and guidance
Lesson 1: Sex and gender

PSHE Association Programme of Study, page 21:
https://www.pshe-association.org.uk/curriculum-and-resources/resources/
programme-study-pshe-education-key-stages-1%E2%80%935

R24. about the difference befween assigned/biological sex, gender identity
and sexual orientation

R26. the terms associated with sex, gender identity and sexual orientation
and fo understand accepted terminology

R27. about the unacceptability of sexist, homophobic, biphobic,
fransphobic, racist and disablist language and behaviour, the need to
challenge it and how to do so

PLEASE NOTE: This lesson may need to run over to the following week -
that's fine if so. Later sessions can be used to catch up. It's better to do
it properly and answer students’ questions and address
misconceptions than rush ©

2 minutes
L] (] L]
Write the title in your book:
Sex and gender
Add My Friends to XML n: fattp: //localhost : 8080, membership/infopage. htnl
Please supply some details for our records data
Nam: I Subscriber detels
Given name Dennig
Family name Smi th
Age (must exceed 17) l?
Sex Male —
/ E-mail dhsehotnail. cox]
[N [a [Gender\ [Postal cod | i
|!3§nmuE |25Ele |M:Il; : N\ |9§959: N | et

Are these the same thing?e Why do they
have different names?e

Page 56

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




The school ethos and curriculum

3 minutes
VERSUS Eg men are
GENDER expected to be
strong and
Eg Mes have Sex refers to the Gender refers to the brave; women
a penis, biological and social and cultural are expected fo
women have physiological differences differences between men be softer and
a vagina. between men and and women. better at caring.
women. -I—h a 1. Th
EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEERN LE RN BENENENRNERNENRRNNERNSSSEHNHS.] ISISnO' e
; : same in all
Sex has two main two Gender has two main cultures!
categories: male and categories: masculine 3
female. and feminine.
LA B BN N NERENERENRGHNESESHNSSH:] LA A RN BN RNNENNERNNERNENHEHN.]
Men and Eg In the past,
women are Sex remains the same Gender roles, women were
biologically regardless of time and expectations may differ expected to
; culture across time and culture.

designed to stay at home
have babies — and look after

LE BB B NN RRNENRNSNSSESHNSESH:,] M EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE .
SO women the children and
produce eggs Sex is created by the Gender distinctions are not work. This
and men reproduction needs, that is, created by social norms. has changed
produce biological features. and continues
sperm. Pediaa.com to change.

2 minutes

gender

Can you answer this question now? (In your books)

What is the difference between sex and gender?

Page 57

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

1 minute

We found out that there are two main sexes and
two main genders.
Do you know of any other sexes in addition to
male and female?

5 minutes

Some people are born with internal and/or
external organs which do not “fit"” clearly into the
male or female category.
The term for this is “intersex”.

XX
(female)

https://www.youtube.com/watch2v=W92g7ic533Vk

Some people get very confused and think that people
choose o be infersex or that it means they are attracted
to both sexes. How are they wrong?

Page 58

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

2 minutes

Like Pidgeon, many intersex babies are operated on fo
make them more clearly fit info the *male” or “female”
category.

Some people feel this is unfair and that the child should
be able to make that decision themselves when they
are older OR there is no need to operate at all — intersex
is just another type of sex and nothing that needs to be
“corrected” unless there is a real risk to the child’s health.
What do you think?

1 minute

There is clearly more than one sex
— are there more genders than
just male and female<¢

Page 59

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow a



The school ethos and curriculum

1 minute

These are just a few examples of genders

which some people identify as. Have you
heard of any before?e

BIGENDER GENDERFLUID TRIGENDER NEUTROIS| |« Some people feel
—ey | ™ their gender changes
TNO GENDERS L and isn’'t always the

same (gender fluid).

AGENDER AvbROGYNE DEMIGIRL DEMIGUY | | ° Some people feel

; they don't have a
dints gender (agender).

+ Some people feel

GEMDERQUEER NOM-BINARY that they don’t fit with

TRANSGENDER CISGENDER the gender they were

i given based on their

DGUPNG IS0 ARG ASAE | 008 b GENDER BINARY
&f TR GENDER YOU WERE i
1HE ONE ASSIGNED A1 psslgNeD h1 Bikk +150 45 MY DR 100 birth sex
Bk 08 BS11 0WN IEATITY (fransgender).

6 minutes

Transgender: When a person’s gender
identity is different to the gender they
were given at birth

https://www.youtube.com/watch2v=kVmaulcM5TU (Stop at 5.00 or earlier if
short on fime.)

Discuss:

What was Jacob’s sex at birth?

When did Jacob feel he was actually a boy?
How did his parents react?

When was Jacob happiest?e

Page 60
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

1 minute

Some transgender people will “transition” from male to
female or female to male.

This may involve:

« having surgery to change their internal and/or external
sexual organs

+ taking hormones to change their body (eg helping to
grow body hair)

+ living their life as their intended gender (eg wearing
clothes, changing birth name, identifying as a “he” or
“she”).

All of these things are entirely personal choices and in the UK
we have laws which protect and support transgender rights.

TRANSGENDER NUMBERS 2 minutes

An estimated one in 200 to one in 500 people worldwide have
a gender identity that differs from their biological sex at birth.
Here are some statistics from recent Canadian polls of those who

identify as transgender or gender-nonconforming: H OW S h O U I d We

ya 39% @ treat people who

are intersex/

Subjected to Turned down for a Have been
verbal threats job due to being targets
or harassment transgender of mockery -I-rO n S g e n d e r/
- 433 e agender, etc?
Seriously Attempted Drop in suicide
considered suicide attempts among
suicide youth with strongly
supportive parents . .
Answer: Like human beings!
. Because we are all human
& o out
875 - 50% and deserve equal respect
regardless of age, gender,
J d N . . .
whofdtumate | auaeddveto]  thand15000 sex, religion, race ...
in places at their gender per year
school identity/expression
SOURCES: TRANS PULSE PROJECT, EGALE CANADA THE CANADIAN PRESS

Page 61

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

4 minutes

Plenary

Some people are born intersex which means ____
Some people are transgender which means ____ .
Unfortunately many transgender people
experience ______

If I saw this happening I would __ and |
understand | have a responsibility to report it to an
adult.

Teacher notes and guidance
Lesson 2: Sexual diversity and attraction

PSHE Association Programme of Study page 21:
https://www.pshe-association.org.uk/curriculum-and-resources/resources/
programme-study-pshe-education-key-stages-1%E2%80%935

R5. that relationships can cause strong feelings and emotions (including
sexual attraction)

R25. to recognise that there is diversity in sexual attraction and developing
sexuality

R26. the terms associated with sex, gender identity and sexual orientation
and to understand accepted terminology

R27. about the unacceptability of sexist, homophobic, biphobic,
fransphobic, racist and disablist language and behaviour, the need to
challenge it and how to do so

Page 62
a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

2 minutes

Write the title in your book:
Sexual diversity and attraction

Discuss: How do you know when you're
attracted to someone?

1 minute

Sexuality is just one of the ways that people differ from
one another.

The term “sexual diversity” is used to describe the
different attractions people can feel. Not all people are
sexually attracted to the opposite sex.

Some people are gay, lesbian, bisexual, asexual or
questioning (there are also lots of other categories!). You
may see or hear this community referred to as LGBT+.

Page 63
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



The school ethos and curriculum

7 minutes

In your book, write the definition next to the
correct keyword. If you aren’t sure, leave a gap
and go on to the next onel

Asexual Attracted to the opposite sex.
Heterosexual Attracted to the same sex.

Bisexual Attracted to both sexes.
Questioning Not atiracted to any of the

sexes.

Someone who is exploring or

Homosexualit
X0ty unsure of their sexuality.

5 minutes

Discuss: Is sexuality a choice?
Then watch the video and answer the
question in your book.

https://www.youtube.com/watchev=Tb7-XzzfiWo

Page 64

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

2 minutes

During adolescence your brain and body are swamped with
hormones. You will notice that your body is changing and that
you start to be attracted to people in a way you haven't
before.

Being a teenager is all about figuring out who you are.
You may feel all sorts of confusion about your sexuality.
Just because you think Ryan Gosling is an absolutely perfect
specimen of a man (like Mrs Phillips does) doesn’t mean you
are necessarily aftracted to men — or even all men!
Just because you think Scarlett Johansson is a stunningly
beautiful woman (like Mrs Phillips does) doesn’t necessarily
mean you are attracted to women - or even all women!
Just because you think both doesn’t necessarily mean you

are bisexual! —
S

e examples prove your ;

take time to figure ou‘{ who and

like. The imporfant thing to -

tall of itis completely NOR !

Neither of thes
idenfity. It can
what you really
remember is tha

4 minutes

In your book: How do you feel about the state of
gay rights around the world?

@ THE LESBIAN, GAY AND BISEXUAL MAP OF WORLD LAWS IPT2T 0

ILGA, THE INTERNATIONAL LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANS AND INTERSEX ASSOCIATION  IEISERES

RECOGNITION  JNNSSSNNN  PROTECTION

ol (kv ] 8 anntis nd 5 ot
W comtses a5 et
<l b it

PERSECUTION

PERALTY
 comees e gt of e s
o

e spucc Isation

Pl
75 oo vt

o Comstres whch introdhed bows.
prnRiiog decrimiastcn 5 e
[T

sttt s g bz Mot R
ol atpcn

ot gropagencs
icing den of
ot aciton

Page 65

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

2 minutes

The United Nations has this to say on the topic of LGBT+
rights. Class discussion: Do we agree? Why?¢

Challenge: What can we do to make
sure that LGBT+ people in our community
have their rights respected?

1 minute

What can you do if you have
questions about your sexuality?

T E E N A G E HELP@TEENAGEHELPLINE.ORG.UK
i | n /TEENAGEHELPLINE
H EI. P LI N E L/: S0 @TEENAGEHELPLINE
Sofidi——

CONTACT

"‘*Stonewall

Acceptance without excey ption

&+ What's in My Area?

Einf BT services and community groupSithat

GO g |e are local'to you
UK

lect Gategory ~ Town:oripostcode [N

LOCATE ME »

HELP & ADVICE GET INVOLVED OUR WORK ABOUT US

LGBT support Hampshire Y
Talk to a teacher. We
Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky are here 1-0 SuU pporf YOUl
Page 66

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




The school ethos and curriculum

Teacher notes and guidance
Lesson 3: Talking about sexual and gender
diversity

PSHE Association Programme of Study page 21:
https://www.pshe-association.org.uk/curriculum-and-resources/resources/
programme-study-pshe-education-key-stages-1%E2%80%935

R25. to recognise that there is diversity in sexual attraction and developing
sexuality

R26. the terms associated with sex, gender identity and sexual orientation
and to understand accepted terminology

R27. about the unacceptability of sexist, homophobic, biphobic,
transphobic, racist and disablist language and behaviour, the need to
challenge it and how to do so

2 minutes

Write the title in your book:
Talking about sexual and gender
diversity

Discuss: How do you know if a word is
unkind or rude¢ Have you ever gotin
trouble for using a word you didn’'t
realise was not appropriate?

Page 67
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



The school ethos and curriculum

1 minute

Over time there have been lofs of words that have been
used to describe different sexualities or genders which
were unkind or hurtful. People have also made
comments or asked questions which were inappropriate.

People didn't understand the harm they were causing by
using these words.

Sticks and Stones may BREAK my Bones
I\l hurt Me

ALWAYS

But words Wi

2 minutes

Can you think of any words which are used in the
wrong way when discussing sexuality or gender?

https://www.youtube.com/watch2v=s c . :
WSOGVOQPSO Who’r is this ad campaign
trying to saye

Have you heard people
https://www.youtube.com/watchgv=b o 2
MIb3mYznE use the word this way?

What did you do?

Page 68
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

5 minutes

In your book:
What did this
school do and
whye What was
the impacte

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v
=b_MIlb3mYznE

Buya dictionary,

8 minutes

While you're watching, make a list of three questions that
shouldn’t be asked for frans people

https://www.youtube.com/watch2v=pvBwWeG4Rpc (Watch until 5.22)

In your book: Pick one of the questions you wrote down
and explain why fransgender people don't want to be
asked these questions.

Are they rude? Silly? Misunderstood? Unkinde Upsetting?
Remember that fransgender people are used to being
asked these questions by complete strangers!

Page 69

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow Q



The school ethos and curriculum

7 minutes

Write a statement for next year’s Year 7
about how Crestwood treats and looks after
LGBT+ students

Provide some guidance on:

+ key terms (eg homosexual, fransgender,
intersex)

« appropriate and inappropriate words or
questions — why you shouldn’t use them, but
also what to do if you hear them being used

+ the concept of equality and why it’s
important to us.

Page 70

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




The school ethos and curriculum

1 minute

Last week we took part in Diversity Week
organised by Just Like Us. Can you
remember what this charity stand fore

ey
just like us

y -—-

2 minutes

Just Like Us fight for equality in education.
What do you think that means?
What examples can you think of?

Page 71

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



The school ethos and curriculum

4 minutes

Is everyone equal at school?

https://www.youtube.com/watch2v=|Ql
CICMup9%8

In your books, answer these questions in

full sentences:

1. What was Section 28¢

2. What is the news report suggesting
some schools are doinge

3. Is that faire Whye

3 minutes

Obviously, schools have a responsibility to
make sure they teach equally and fairly
about LGBT+ issues, but what can you do
to make sure ALL students are treated
and looked after equallye Make a list in
your books.

Page 72
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The school ethos and curriculum

6 minutes

Remember, silence helps
homophobia.

(
o) ..
vonoritn \o&/ https://youtu.be/XQ

KGigbsl2821=42s

Stand up, speak out!
n,

(Watch from 0.42)

Can you add
anything to your list?

In your book: S
My pledge (promise):

As a student at Crestwood, | pledge to

(Think about what you will do to show your
peers that you care about their happiness
and safety.

Think about what you would do if you saw
homophobic bullying or heard homophobic
language.

Think about small things you could do to show
LGBT+ peers that we are all one community.)

Page 73

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Schools with an open ethos, which create a safe space for pupils, are likely to also create a safe
space in which LGBT+ staff are more at ease.

The same considerations apply in supporting staff as they do for pupils. Staff members are
afforded a duty of care and are entitled to work in an environment which gives due consideration
to their emotional health and wellbeing. LGBT+ staff are also entitled to confidentiality if they
choose to disclose matters related to their gender identity and/or sexual orientation.

Like pupils, staff members are afforded protection from discrimination and the starting point of how
other staff behave should be evident from the key principles in policies, with wider formal
procedures in place to enable members of staff to address issues of concern where they arise and
cannot be dealt with informally.

Regardless of any individual disclosure, schools should ensure that staff are aware of wider
support beyond the school that is available to them. Teacher professional associations and
support staff unions provide support to staff dealing with gender identity or sexual orientation
matters in the workplace, not limited to specific support for dealing with any concerns that have
arisen. Additionally, Hampshire County Council has a staff LGBT network that is available to all
members of staff in Hampshire schools and academies.

Where a staff member has disclosed a matter associated with any potential change to their
gender identity, schools are encouraged to seek specific Human Resources (HR) support at the
earliest opportunity to develop a staff support plan. As above, such support will need to be
reflective of the individual’s desire and wishes regarding any disclosure. However, HR support
may need to work with the staff member and school leadership to consider how to proactively
manage any communication that may become necessary with governors, colleagues, parents and
pupils, as well as support with more practical matters.

It is also important to be aware that the County Council is keen to ensure support is given to staff
who have made difficult personal decisions not to continue in their current employment whilst
dealing with a matter associated with gender identity. Where notified via Education Personnel
Services, the County Council can ensure one-to-one support is provided to facilitate such
colleagues to return to employment within Hampshire schools at a time of their choosing.

Schools need to ensure that they are clear through recruitment processes in their messaging to
prospective staff about their culture and ethos, including in relation to matters of inclusion.
Ensuring that prospective staff are fully aware of your culture will not enable you to recruit staff
who will embrace this ethos for the benefits of pupils, but it is likely it will attract LGBT+ staff who
feel more comfortable in such an environment, enabling the school to recruit from the widest pool
of talent.

It is also worth acknowledging that time off work to attend medical appointments will be an
important issue in terms of practical support for staff who are considering gender reassignment.
Transition is often lengthy (years), requiring a significant number of medical appointments.

Page 74

» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Introduction to Y Services’ Charter of Rights

Introduction to Y Services Hampshire and
Isle of Wight: Schools and Colleges LGBT+
Charter of Rights

Y Services is a leading youth work charity in Hampshire, delivering quality youth work that meets
the needs of local young people. The charity has been operational since May 2011 and now
delivers diverse and engaging youth work opportunities across the region in Fareham, Gosport,
Havant, Portsmouth and Winchester. Y Services has grown to have a leading expertise in working
with LGBT+ young people.

The Y Services Hampshire and Isle of Wight Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights was
developed during a conference held on 25 June 2016, at Hampshire County Council’'s Ashburton
Hall in Winchester. The Voices for Change: an LGBT+ Youth Conference sought to bring together
young people from across Hampshire to share their views and experiences and to hear from
people who are working to promote the development and wellbeing of LGBT+ young people.

Voices for Change was carefully planned with input from LGBT+ young people every step of the
way and featured guest speakers, a number of workshops and, most importantly, the opportunity
for young people to get together and share their experiences.

A total of seven workshops were on offer, with young people each being able to sign up and
attend two of the workshops. These workshops covered a range of subjects, from sexual health to
mental health and from cyber-bullying to trans and gender fluid awareness, and were aimed at
ensuring the needs of young people, around what they would like more information on, were met.

Guest speakers came from all over the UK, including Fox Fisher (My Genderation), MP Caroline
Dinage (Equalities Minister), Graham Ross (LGBT Youth Scotland), and offered expertise on
varied aspects of the LGBT+ experience. These guest speakers were selected after considering
the needs of young people and the purpose of the conference. The speakers’ range of
experiences offered young people a great insight into the many different areas of everyday life
and how far the LGBT+ community has come and highlighted how far the community still needs to
go to achieve real and meaningful equality.

The most important aim of the day was to begin the process of seeing if Y Services needed to put
together a youth charter for Hampshire schools, which would aim to ensure LGBT+ young people
receive fair and equal treatment and are able to learn in a safe and supportive environment. The
unanimous feedback from the 70 young people and 30 professionals who attended was that an
LGBT+ charter for schools and colleges was indeed needed and should be developed.

Following on from the conference, feedback was sought from young people to enable the
progression of the youth charter and to inform future planning. Y Services held another large-scale
event, Voices for Change: an LGBT+ Festival on 16 June 2017. The Y Services Hampshire and
Isle of Wight Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights evolved from young people’s direct
voice in the workshops. The charter is their work entirely; their views, their opinions, their
expressed needs.

Page 75

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Introduction to Y Services’ Charter of Rights

Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charters of Rights

y‘ Y SERVICES: HAMPSHIRE AND IOW SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES LGBT+ CHARTER OF RIGHTS
Achieving a standard that meets the minimum expectation:
As a school/ college we will ensure.....

We administer education of LGBT+ community and
issues, this could be during tutor times or as an assembly

All students have access to LGBT+ information as part of
the schools sex and relationship education curriculum

A specifically trained member of staff (LGBT+ champion)
must be present on site during every school day to ensure
students have support

-

el

Students should be able to choose which Physical 4

Education group they want to be in, these also should
include students of all genders and identities

We have a zero-tolerance bullying policy in place that is
enforced, and explicitly mentions LGBT+ issues

Learning groups are not segregated on the basis of
sex/gender as all students need to learn

All students have their preferred name and pronouns recorded
on the school/college register and used by school staff

We have at least one gender-neutral toilet that is accessible
to all students

' Up to date and relevant LGBT+ information and
" media is made available to students, so that there is
increased LGBT+ visibility within school/college

We have gender neutral uniforms

Page 76

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




Introduction to Y Services’ Charter of Rights

@ Y SERVICES: HAMPSHIRE AND IOW SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES LGBT+ CHARTER OF RIGHTS

As LGBT+ young people, we have aright to .....

: A safe space and a support system that we can
use at all times during the school day

Access to LGBT+ sex education lessons as well as :Z

sexual health knowledge during school hours

All teachers being trained to understand LGBT+
young people and any issues they may be having

Be treated equally in all aspects of school life and have
the same opportunities as every other student '

Be ensured that there is an anti-discrimination

policy actively enforced in every school/college

Be visible. Have a media presence and resources
available that celebrate LGBT+ diversity and
community in school/college

Be addressed politely using our preferred
name and pronouns

Access to gender neutral toilets that aren’t
isolated from the rest of the school r

Feel safe at school and to feel like we are not

being judged by any students or staff

Choose whether we would like to wear a

gender neutral uniform

Page 77

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow e



Introduction to Y Services’ Charter of Rights

@ Y SERVICES: HAMPSHIRE AND IOW SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES LGBT+ CHARTER OF RIGHTS

Achieving a standard that exceeds the minimum expectation:

As a School/College we will ensure....

Senior leadership organise and deliver more than one
compulsory LGBT+ assembly per year

LGBT+ based lessons are included in PHSE lessons taught
to all years 7 - 11 students

All staff should undertake yearly teacher training/CPD
regarding developing understanding of issues to support
LGBT+ students

All Physical Education/sports groups should be of
mixed genders/identities

All students should be able to feel that they can report

5 instances of homophobic/biphobic/transphobic bullying
and feel confident that it has been dealt with appropriately

Overall organisational language moves away from the
gender binary of male and female to include non
binary gender identities

Use the young person's preferred name, (not birth name) in all
circumstances, even when parents do not consent, if the young
person is assessed as Gillick competent using Fraser guidelines

The school/college has more than one Gender Neutral
toilet and changing room facilities

F The school/college actlvely celebrates LGBT+ Hlstory and
- Pride month, with organised events, mainstream lessons
including LGBT+ content across the curriculum

The school/college has an LGBT+ support group running
each week on a specific break or lunch time

Page 78

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




Introduction to Y Services’ Charter of Rights

Why should you sign up to the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Schools
and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights?

By doing so you are showing your commitment to ensuring that LGBT+ pupils in our schools and
colleges across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight are included, valued, supported and will be
treated with equality of opportunity and fairly when they access your services.

Achieving the LGBT+ Charter of Rights will help demonstrate your commitment to LGBT+ pupils in
the local area by supporting them to identify their rights alongside respect and responsibilities.

The LGBT+ Charter of Rights will help you as an organisation and community to look at your
policies and practice, including your legal obligations in the context of the Equalities Act 2010 and
LGBT+ equality.

By displaying the LGBT+ Charter of Rights you will send a positive message to LGBT+ people in
your schools, colleges and communities in Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, that they are
included, valued, supported and will be treated with respect, equality of opportunity and fairly
when they access your services.

You will also make it clear to other organisations, pupils, members of staff and members of the
community that rights, respect and responsibility, as well as overarching equality and diversity, is
at the heart of the service delivery at your school or college.

Displaying the charter will reassure people that your school and/or workplace is a safe and
supportive place for LGBT+ people.

Future steps: how to use the Y Services’ Hampshire and Isle of
Wight Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights

The Y Services’ Hampshire and Isle of Wight Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights is
essentially a three-page, poster-style document. The charter is a stand-alone document which
states what LGBT+ young people have said that they want to see in school as their right.

The charter standards of minimum and exceeding expectations are two documents that work in
tandem and sit alongside an audit tool, which should, initially, be used as a self-assessment and
action planning process.

Y Services has developed a charter to work with as a live document that is based on local need
and has been designed by local LGBT+ young people. Therefore, the charter is an up-to-date,
relevant tool for local schools and colleges in Hampshire and the Isle of Wight to use to ensure
that they are addressing the needs of their LGBT+ pupils, not a working document that has been
designed by officers but by those who have identified the needs for themselves.

Page 79

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Accreditation: making it real

Accreditation: making it real

By using the audit self-assessment tool you should prioritise three actions that, as a school or
college, you decide need to be worked on and addressed during the academic year. The charter
self-assessment toolkit should be re-used each year to ensure high standards are maintained and
developed.

Y Services would encourage you to include young people in the process of agreeing and
formulating the actions. This could be achieved by consulting LGBT+ young people at your school
or college as part of the Student Council and participation process.

Y Services can verify the quality assurance of your self-assessment audit. This would be on a
consultancy basis and culminate in being awarded an appropriate standard certificate.

Page 80
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Local support for schools

Local support for schools

Local organisations — local support

Breakout Youth

Web: www.breakoutyouth.org.uk/

Youth project with many years’ experience of working directly with young people and supporting
adults and organisations.

Chrysalis

Web: www.chrysalis-gii.co.uk/

Specific to the trans community. Based in Hampshire, this organisation is under new management
and could be a significant support to schools and young people.

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Educational Psychology (HIEP)

What they can offer:

HIEP is committed to promoting equality and supporting inclusive education for all. Over recent
years they have become more involved in supporting schools, parents and young people from the
LGBT+ community at many levels. They can support:

e at asystems level:
- policy writing (for example anti-bullying, equality and inclusion)
— whole-school support:
« staff training on LGBT+ issues to support inclusion and the ethos of the school
e research with your staff and pupils to inform school development
e atagroup level:

- supporting pastoral staff and sharing good practice through group supervision (eg
emotional literacy support assistant (ELSA) supervision meetings)

- pupil groups, which HIEP can run in schools or support staff in setting them up
e atan individual level:
- support with pupils from the LGBT+ community

- work with individual staff members, eg consultation, supervision or coaching.

Page 81

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


http://www.breakoutyouth.org.uk/
http://www.chrysalis-gii.co.uk/

Local support for schools

This list is not exhaustive and if you need support with issues around supporting the LGBT+
community in school then get in touch. HIEP welcome the opportunity to support children and
young people from the LGBT+ community. Charges will apply — the costings are dependent upon
the work required — and this can be negotiated during the initial contact. For contact information
for your area see:

Web: www.hants.gov.uk/childrens-services/childrenandyoungpeople/educational-psychology/
contact-hep.

Hampshire website

Web: www3.hants.gov.uk/Igbtalliance

Click on the Local Groups and Services tile and type in the word college or youth to this website
for a range of local services; for national services go to the National Support Services tile.
Remember to add your school’s services on the local site once you are set up. Just click on the
green button.

Kroma

Web: www.kromalgbt.org.uk

Kroma is an empowering and enabling organisation for the lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender
and alternative (LGBT+) communities, their families and friends, through awareness,
inclusiveness and supportiveness throughout Hampshire.

LAGLOSs: Lesbian and Gay Liaison Officers

Web: www.hampshire.police.uk/about-us/our-commitments/equality-and-inclusion/

This team of officers has many years’ experience working with the LGBT+ community and works
directly with schools.

New Family Social

For further support and advice on LGBT+ and families, including lesbian, gay, bi or trans people
considering fostering and adoption, please visit the New Family Social site at:

Web: www.newfamilysocial.org.uk/resources/.

Y Services

Web: www.yservices.co.uk/lgbt/

Youth project with numerous years’ experience of working directly with young people and
supporting adults and organisations.

Page 82
a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.hants.gov.uk/childrens-services/childrenandyoungpeople/educational-psychology/contact-hep
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/lgbtalliance
http://www.kromalgbt.org.uk
http://www.hampshire.police.uk/about-us/our-commitments/equality-and-inclusion/
http://www.newfamilysocial.org.uk/resources/
http://www.yservices.co.uk/lgbt/
http://www.hants.gov.uk/childrens-services/childrenandyoungpeople/educational-psychology/contact-hep

Local support for schools

National organisations — local support

Educate and Celebrate

Web: www.educateandcelebrate.org/

This organisation is steeped in education. Like Stonewall, they offer school support packages with
resources. Unlike Stonewall, their organisation came from a schools’ perspective.

Mermaids

Web: http://mermaidsuk.org.uk/

An organisation designed specifically to support trans young people — it also offers support to
parents and organisations.

Primary School Champions Programme

Web: www.stonewall.org.uk/our-work/education-resources/primary-schools/primary-school-
champions-programme

Secondary School Champions Programme

Web: www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-involved-education/secondary-schools/secondary
[-school-champions-programme|

Stonewall

Web: www.stonewall.org.uk/search/school%20champion

Schools ‘Champions Programmes is the programme they use to support schools. Quite a few
Hampshire schools use this option.

Breakout support for schools

Breakout Youth

Breakout Youth is an independent charity (number 1147556) based in Hampshire and the Isle of
Wight. Breakout Youth was set up in 1993 in response to the dangers faced by LGBT youth at that
time. They offer a confidential support service for young people aged 11 to 21, who are lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, questioning or unsure of their sexuality or gender identity.

What they can offer:

Page 83
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


http://www.educateandcelebrate.org/
http://mermaidsuk.org.uk/
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/our-work/education-resources/primary-schools/primary-school-
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-involved-education/secondary-schools/secondary-school-champions-programme
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/search/school%20champion
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-involved-education/secondary-schools/secondary-school-champions-programme

Local support for schools

Southampton

Weekly Youth Group for 11-21 year olds (up to 25 with additional needs) every Thursday from
7.00pm-9.00pm.

Fortnightly LGBTQ music group for 12-25 year olds on a Monday from 6.30pm-8.30pm.
Parent support sessions.
Monthly gender identity group on a Monday from 7.00pm-9.00pm.

One-to-one support.

Basingstoke

Weekly youth group for 11-21 year olds (up to 25 with additional needs) every Monday from
7.00pm-9.00pm.

Fortnightly LGBTQ music group for 12-25 year olds on a Wednesday from 6.00pm-8.00pm.
Monthly gender identity group.

Eastleigh

Weekly youth group for 11-21 year olds (up to 25 with additional needs) every Tuesday from
7.00pm-9.00pm.

Andover

Fortnightly youth group for 11-21 year olds (up to 25 with additional needs) on alternate
Thursdays from 7.00pm-9.00pm.

Hart

One-to-one support.

Isle of Wight

Fortnightly youth group for 11-21 year olds (up to 25 with additional needs) on alternate
Tuesdays from 6.30pm-8.30pm.

Fortnightly youth group for 7-11 year olds with parent support, in conjunction with Barnardo’s,
on a Monday from 4.00pm-6.00pm.

One-to-one support.

Training

PSHE lessons (£0 to £70 dependant on location).
Bespoke staff training (half day £0 to £250 dependant on location).

Page 84

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Local support for schools

o Bespoke staff training (full day 50 people £0 to £400 dependant on location).

Contact details
Tel: 023 8022 4224

Email: enquiries@breakoutyouth.org.uk

Web: www.breakoutyouth.org.uk

Y Services LGBT+ Support Projects

Training and other opportunities

e They support young people in referrals to a variety of provisions ,including specialist services
(Tavistock and Portman Gender Identity Development Service) as well as other youth
opportunities and LGBT+ groups, health and wellbeing drop in sessions, Y Keep Safe (raising
awareness of CSE, unhealthy relationships, etc and providing strategies to improve resilience
and understanding).

e Information stand at parents evenings, fresher fairs, conferences and professional network
events.

o Parents of transgender young people support group — meets monthly.

e PSHE lessons (£0-£70 dependant on location).

o Bespoke staff training (half day £0-£250 dependant on location).

o Bespoke staff training (full day, 50 people £0- £400 dependant on location).

e Consultation — POA dependant on location.

e Quality assurance for LGBT+ Charter for School and Colleges dependant on location.

e Events for school clusters — POA.

e Hate crime reporting centre/equality and diversity event using the Y Service double-decker
bus to visit the school/college (£0-£450 dependant on location).

Contact us:

Email: dawn@yservices.co.uk

Tel: 07503 353636
Email: info@yservices.co.uk
Tel: 07585 115022

Web: WWW.Vservices.co.uk

Page 85

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


mailto:enquiries@breakoutyouth.org.uk
http://www.breakoutyouth.org.uk
mailto:dawn@yservices.co.uk
mailto:info@yservices.co.uk
http://www.yservices.co.uk

Local support for schools

Facebook: Y Services LGBT+ Youth Groups
Twitter: @yserviceslgbt

Instagram:  yserviceslgbt

Page 86

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



—
=
o
c
O
o
o
<

Appendix 1

Schools and Colleges LGBT+ Charter of Rights audi

tool

"AoAIns els pue Jusapn}s Jo s}nsay
'sanss|

noge ey o} a|qe |99} pue Joddns
10} 06 0} asaym mouy ajdoad BunoA

JJe1S |00Y0S JO SIaquIBW JUBAS|a)

‘uorjew.oyul
0} S$900E Sey pue Buluies)
Ajojeldoidde yyess Jo Jaquisy

[s@o1n18S A YIMm ¥08YD [|Im
*"JUBWIOW Y} IO} DABST ¢,,0]0J B}
Uo 8B} 0} SESO0YD OYM BUOBWOS,,
pue [1x8) Buissiw] *** sey oym jejs

Buiyoesy jo Jaquisw v, :Buissiw
X8} aWos Yym sajdwexs om}

1 S 10 ¢,,0]01 8Y} UO 8B} 0} UBsoYd
sey oym yejs Buiyoesy Jo Jaquisw
v, 0} Buiseiydas spaau os ajdwexa
9|buis e siy} s|] *8|01 Y} UO BYe)

0} S8S00YD OYM BUO SWOS dARY

‘poddns aAey sjuapnis
ainsua 0} Aep jooyos Alans Bulnp a)is uo juasald aq jshw

JO SaWeu ay)} mouy| Sjuapnis ||y oym Jjejs Buiyoea) jo Jaquisw v (uoidweysd +1g97) yels Jo Jaquiaw pauiel) Ajjeoiyoads v e
"awly 10N} ‘WIN|NOLIND 8y} Ul 3YS ‘wiNINOLLIND uoljeonpa diysuole|al pue xas sjooyos
10} sasi01axa/ue|d uossa| JO SBJON | pue sanss| +1g97 Buipnioul JHS | dy3 Jo HYed se uoiewloul +| 97 O} SS800E aABY SIUSPNIS || z
‘SeljAloe
SIONI|OP JoYIOM YINoA +1g97]
‘sdnoub ieak
"awl} 10N} ||e 10} (Areniga4) yiuo A1o)siH ‘Alqwesse ue se 1o sawiy Jojn} Bulnp aq pinoo siyy
10} sasloiaxa/ue|d uossa| Jo sa10N +1997 buunp pjay Alquessy {s8Nss| pue AJuNwwod +] g9 4O UOI}EINPS J)SIUIWLPE DA L
9oUapIAg sajdwex3 Japeys | piepuels

:uonedwoo jo ajeq

:uonjesiuebiojabajjoo/jooyss

uonejoadxa Jo piepue}s wnuwiuiw e buirsiydy :|00} Jipny
sybiy jo saueys +1g91 sabajjon pue sjooyss :JybiIpp Jo 9|s| pue adlysdweH sa21AI9S A

Page 87
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




—
=
o
c
o
Q
o
<

“fiuspl 1apusb 1o xas
10 sso|piebal Bulieam a|gelIojW0D
1sow |84 Aoy} 1By} wioyun [00Yos

8y} JeaM 0} |ge 8Je Sjuapns || ‘swiojiun [einau-lapusb aAey oA 0l
‘looyos
Jo apisino poddns 03 ajdoad BunoA
Jajal 0} uoljew.ojul pue Bunsodubig
‘Jooyos uiypm sisisod +] g9 "2b8]|00/|00y2s UlyIM AY|IgISIA
‘dnoib | +1 997 pesealoul S| alay} Jey} 0s ‘sjuspnis 0} o|qejieAe apewl
"Kieuqy ui 3si| Yooq +1997 Hoddng YInoA +1997 HNsuoD Sl eIpaW pue Uollewlojul + | 997 JUBAS|SI pue 8ep-0}-dn 6
‘asn 0} ajdoad BunoA
‘abeubis |esynau-lapusb pue Jspusbsuel) ‘'SjuspnIs ||e 0}
ajeudoidde pue 19]10} Jo UOIIBOOT | Jo} Isn(jou sI 19]10) |e)NBuU-18pual |  ©|qISS8d0e S| 1By} 1910} [Biinau-lapuab auo }ses)| 1e aney app 8
‘aweu yuiq ‘Siseq mouy
Jay} Buisnsiw sisyoes) burpodal -0}-pdau B uo UdAIb uoijew.ojul
a|doad BunoA jo seouejsul o | SNIISUSS pue Buiures| "o} pauisyel ‘Jels
aq 0} Juem Aay) moy s|doad |jooyos Ag pasn ale asauy) pue Jajsibal 869)|02/100yos ay} uo
Indur gNIS Jo eidwexg | BunoA Buiyse suolesiaAuod uadQ | papliodal sunouold pue sweu pausjald J1sy) aAeY SJUSPNIS || /
‘sdnoub Buluies)
Jualayip ojul dn sjdoad BunoA ‘ules| 0} paau sjUBpNIs ||e se Japuab/xas
XIW S8SSE[0 Moy Jo Apnis ase) Jo siseq ay} uo pajebaibas jou ale sdnoib BuiuiesT] 9
‘pajuswa|dwi
pue uapum Aoijod BulAjIng-nuy
‘BulAIng paseq ‘pauswa|dwi 'SONss| +] g9 suojuaw ApIoidxa pue paoiojus
+1997 Jo sjuspioul ||e uo Joday pue uspum Aoijod BulAng-nuy sl 1ey} 9oe(d ul Aoijod BulA||ng 80UrIS|0}-048Z B 8ABY S\ G
‘S8IJjuUspI pue siapuab ||e Jo sjuspnis
apnpoul pjnoys sdnoib asay) ‘ul 8q 0y Juem Aay) dnolb
‘SJUBpN}s |eNpIAIpUl Jo Apnls aseD | pajuswaldwi pue usim Aoljod 34| uoieanpa |edisAyd yoiym 8sooyd o} 8|ge 8g pjnoys sjuapnis ¥
2ouapIng sajdwexg 19jey) | piepuelg

Page 88
a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow

Hampshire




Appendix 1

aleq paubig Apoq juapnys Aq paaiby
sjeg paubig 11S Aq peaiby
(o uonoy
(9 uonoy
(e uonoy

BOUBPIAS pue uoldY Jayeys pue piepuelg

Page 89
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow

“Jeah olwspeoe ay) J8A0 Juswdo|sAsp o) seale 8aly) sepnjoul jey) ued uonoe ue ssioud pjnoys noA abs(j0o/|00yos e sy
ueld uonoe 610z AInf — 810z 1oquaydag

uone}oadxa Jo piepuels wnwiuiw e BulAaIydy |00} Jipny
sjybBiy Jo Japeys +1 997 sabajjon pue sjooyss :JyBipA Jo 39S pue allysdweH sadIAIaS A




—
=
o
c
o
Q
o
<

"saljijuap! Jlepush
A1euig-uou spnjoul 0] a|eWwa) pue sjew Jo Aleuiq Jepuab

ay} woij Aeme sanow abenbue jeuoijesiueblo |jeianQ 9
‘Aiorendoidde
Uim jjeap usaq sey Jl Jey} jJuspljuod |99} pue
BulA|ing a1qoydsueuyoigoydig/oigoydowoy Jo saoueisul
Hodau ueo Aay) jey} |99) 0} 8|ge g P|NOYS Sjuspns ||y G
‘'sannuapl/siapushb
paxiw jo aq pjnoys sdnoib suodsyuoneonpa |eaishyd ||y ¥
‘SJuapNIs +1997 1oy
Hoddns o} senssi jo Buipuelsiepun Buidojensp Buipiebad
ado/buiuten; sayoesy Alieak ayeuapun pinoys Jels |V €
"SaIlIAIJOB UO-MOJ|0) Buipnjoul
‘aielidoidde obe ‘sdnolb Jeak e ‘'SJUspNIs | |-/ 13 A [|e 0} Jybney
‘uoljenjens pue suejd uossa| 404 pouueld pue pesifbe wnnoINd SUOSS®| JHSd Ul pPapN|oul 8Je SUoSSa| paseq +1997 z
‘9pld
Jo Buiuesw ay} Jo JuI04ieamod
‘Aeq
INO Buiwo) |euoien Jo Julodlamod
1eak ay) Buunp
"Yuop sawll} 93y} Ajquiasse siaAl|ep Jeak 1ad Alquissse +] g9 Alosindwoo
AIOISIH +1997 JO Jul04iemod Jeak Jo peay 10 JayoesjpesH | 8uo Uey} alow SiaAljep pue sesiuebio diysiepes| Joluss L
2ouUdpIAg sa|jdwex3g 1ajeyn piepueyg

:uonajdwon jo ajyeq

:uonjesiuebiojabajjoojjoo0yog

uoneysadxe wnwiuiw ay) spPaddxa jey) piepuels e BuirsIydy |00} Bpny

sjybBiy Jo Jayeys +1 997 sobajjon pue sjooyss :JyBIpA Jo 3s| pue aliysdweH SadIAIaS A

Page 90
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




—
=
o
c
O
Q
o
<

(o uonoy

(g uonoy

(e uonoy

92UBPIA3 pue Uol}oy

Japeyo pue piepuels

ue|d uonoe gLoz 1oqualdeg
uonjejoadxa wnwiuiw a3y} Spasdxsa ey} pJepuels e Huiaalyoy :|00} Jpny
sybiy jo 19)eyd +19971 sabajjon pue sjooyss :JybIpA JO 3|S| pue asiysdweH SadIAIBS A

"awWiyouN| 1o yeslq o1y10ads B Uuo }aam yoes
Buiuunis dnoib poddns +] g9 ue sey a69|109/j00yds 8y |

0l

‘WINN21UND 8y} SSOJO. JUBjU0D +1 g9 Buipnjoul
SU0SS8| Wealjsulew ‘SjusAs paziuebio ypm ‘Yyiuop apld
pue AojsiH +1997 soielqalao AjpAaijoe 869)|09/|00yos ay L

‘saliIoe) wool BuiBueys pue 1910}
[eJineu-lepuab suo uey) aiow sey obs)|0o/j00y0s By |

‘saul|apinb Josel

Buisn juajedwoo oI5 se passasse si uositad BunoA ay)
JI JUBSUOD Jou Op Sjualed usyM UBAS ‘S8DUBISWNDIID || Ul
(aweu yuiq Jou) sweu paisjald s,uosiad BunoA ayy asn

9JuUapIng

sajdwex3

1apeyn

pJepuels

Page 91
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




Appendix 2

Example of a school survey

In establishing an inclusive ethos that supports everyone in the school community, including
LGBT+ pupils, schools can develop their programmes of Pupil Voice and pupil participation. What
do the pupils think about their school and the way it supports the LGBT+ pupils and staff?

Pupil, student and staff surveys are a simple and effective process to gather views from everyone
in the school community. They allow comparisons to be made regarding perceptions of the work
of the school in supporting LGBT+ rights and can give a measure of success in planned actions in
meeting the requirements of the Equality Act.

The following is an example of a school staff survey conducted in a Hampshire secondary school
in the summer of 2017. Staff were asked to respond to the following statements:

e My school has clear policies concerning LGBT+ matters
e | am encouraged to include LGBT+ matters into my lesson plans
e My school is supportive of LGBT+ staff

« My school offers regular staff training and support in dealing with LGBT+ pupils (or children of
LGBT+ parents).

An honest appraisal of the responses to the survey will allow schools to move forward, developing
approaches to policy and practice, including staff learning and development.

Another survey conducted in Hampshire schools (the What do | think? survey) gives a general
picture of pupils’ perceptions of rights respecting education. For instance, over a three year period
(2014-2017) an average of 80% of Year 9 pupils felt that they were at least “sometimes” taught
about rights and how to respect others. This would be a good starting point for schools in
developing ideas about rights and respect and how broadly this concept embraces all aspects of
diversity, including LGBT+ inclusion.

Page 92

@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Appendix 2

Survey Results

o]}
My school has clear policies concerning LGBT+ matters

Answared: 35 Skipped: |

Yes

i il
e -

| can see how
this is..

O%  10% 0% 305 A0 B0 Bl T BOSk S8 1009

ANSWER CHOICES RESPOMSES

Yes M43% E
Mot at all 3.43% n
I can see how this is included in other poticies 57.14% 20
TOTAL as

Q2

| am encouraged to include LGBT+ matters into my
lesson plans

Anzwerad: 31 Skipped: §

Wes activaly
encouraged

Ho it wauld
nat be appro...

Ho but it
would be...
08 108 209 304 0% 50% 0% T BOAS 908 10:0%

AMNSWER CHOICES RESPOMSES

Yes actively encouraged 12.90% 4
Hao it would not be approved of in our school 0.00% o
NO DUt it would De welcomed 87.10% 7
TOTAL N

Page 93

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Appendix 2

Q3
My school is supportive of LGBT+ staff

Answered: 35  Skipped: 1

Yeu = clear
SUPPOIT M.

Mo = subject
8 nOL raise...

Sometimes - it

has been...
0%  10% 2% F0% *0% 50% 60% TO% 809% 0% 100%
ANSWER CHDICES RESPOMNSES
Yes - clear support In school documentation 20.00% 7
Ko - subject is not raised with staff at all 54.29% 19
Sometimes - it has been discussed once or twice in staff training or meetings 95 T4 4
TOTAL 35

Q4

My school offers regular staff training and support in
dealing with LGBT+ students (or children of LGBT+
parents)

Angwered: 35 Skipped:

Y - regular
part of staf...
Mo - subject
s not ralse...

Somerimes - it

has been...
0% 104 20% 30% 40% 5006 &% T05% 0% 0% 100%
AMNSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Yas - regular part of staff timetable 2.86% 1
No - subject Is not ralsed with staff at all 62.86% n
Someatimeas - it has been discussad ance ar twice in staff training or mestings 34.29% 12
TOTAL 35

Page 94
@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Appendix 3

PoLICY DOCUMENT '
ACHIEVING EXCELLENCE HI@r\

Bullying Policy

Rationale

When the behaviour of one person or a group of people deliberately causes repeated
distress to another, bullying is taking place. Horndean Technology College (HTC) deplores
bullying and views it as anti-social behaviour that has no place in our College, which is
highlighted in our commitment to a Rights Respecting ethos and in ensuring the rights of all
young people are fulfilled (UNCRC, The United Nations Rights of the Child). In particular that
all young people:

Article 14: Have the right to think and believe what they want and to practise their religion,
as long as they are not stopping other people from enjoying their rights.

Article 15: Have the right to meet together and to join groups and organisations, as long
as it does not stop other people from enjoying their rights. In exercising their rights, children
have the responsibility to respect the rights, freedoms and reputations of others.

Article 19: Have the right to be protected from being hurt and mistreated, physically or
mentally.

e Parents should be made aware of the Colleges approach to bullying by publicizing anti-
bullying charter and other publications, and by such methods as an information evening.

o Staff should approach the issue of bullying from the base that we deplore bullying not
the people who do it.

What is bullying?

Bullying is behaviour by an individual or group, usually repeated over time, that intentionally
hurts another individual or group either physically or emotionally. This situation can only be
maintained where there is an imbalance of power. Bullying may include:

e Hitting or physically harming another person deliberately, however minor.

¢ Name calling, malicious gossip, taunting or teasing. Any form of derogatory comment or
gesture aimed at someone due to their colour, creed, race, background/upbringing,
religious beliefs or sexual orientation.

Intimidating or frightening another person.

Interfering with other people’s property, including theft, damage or extortion.

“Sending people to Coventry”.

Ganging up to intimidate or abuse a person.

Page 95

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Appendix 3

e Use of the internet or ‘cyber bullying’ (e.g. e-mails, YouTube, Facebook and MSN
messages) and mobile phones, ‘happy slapping’. Cyber bullying is seen as different
because of its potential anonymity (false sense of bravado), geography (all pervasive),
impact (24/7) and potential permanence.

HTC is committed to tackling all forms of bullying related to race, religion or culture, special
education needs, sexual orientation (including homophobic incidents directed at young
people who are gay, lesbian or transgender), home circumstances or related to gender or
gender identity (sexist, sexual or transphobic).

Students discuss what bullying is in tutorial sessions and PSHE lessons or elsewhere as
appropriate and are taught to define bullying in the right language i.e. any hurtful
behaviour, that is deliberate and repeated over time, and where there is an imbalance of
power. They are also taught the difference between relationship conflicts (which happen
accidentally) and bullying (which is repeated hurtful behaviour).

What should happen if bullying is taking place?
Students should be encouraged to understand that if they are being bullied or know of
someone who is bullied, by telling a member of staff they will receive a supportive response.

Parents should be made aware that HTC cares and will be active in discouraging and
challenging bullying, and have rigorous anti bulling strategies in place addressing prevention
of bullying and interventions following any incidents.

All staff have a shared responsibility for detecting, discouraging and challenging bullying
behaviour.

Students are offered a range of support strategies depending on their needs through Peer
Mentors and by Year Leaders and Student Support Services.

What action should be taken to discourage bullying?

e Students should be able to explore bullying issues in Tutorial work at an appropriate
point in the PSHE programme and whenever appropriate throughout the curriculum and
in all transactions in lessons, including use of derogatory language and homophobic
bullying.

e Bullying as an issue should be raised as an agenda item in College Council meetings and
anti-bullying should be regularly incorporated in assemblies.

¢ Staff who are on duty before College, at break time, lunchtimes or after College must be
vigilant as to all possible bullying opportunities or incidents. This includes specific
attention being paid to key areas such as queues, toilets, locker corridors, *hidden spaces’
etc. The College’s video camera system will be used to resolve details of bullying
incidents as possible.

e All reports or incidents of bullying will be investigated and followed through. Whilst
individual incidents may result in specific punishments, the overall intention will be to
ensure that bullying as a practice is eliminated or reduced.

e Students know that they should report any incidences of bullying to any Teacher or any
other member of staff. Incident report forms specifically for bullying (green) can be
found in Student Support Services.

e All staff know that any report of bullying must be forwarded to the Form Tutor, Year
Leader or Subject Leader as appropriate.

Bullying Policy 2

Page 96
» Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Appendix 3

e Staff and students will be informed that if necessary, such as in the event of racist or
homophobic bullying, the police may be involved with dealing with the bully.
e Promote a rights respecting anti bullying culture.

What happens next?

e Parents of the student being bullied will be informed of known bullying immediately after
receiving a report, by the Subject Teacher, Form Tutor, Year Leader or other Senior
member of staff.

e Allincidents of alleged bullying will be investigated fully and logged.

e HTC maintains that anyone who is being bullied, or who identifies bullying of someone
else, will have their view seriously listened to.

e Support will be given to all those students involved.

Students are surveyed regularly, including through the annual County questionnaire, to
establish their views and take action where necessary.

What support will be given to people who are bullied?

e The parents of students who are bullied will normally be notified.

e A meeting with the Year Leader, perhaps with the Form Tutor or a relevant Subject
Teacher will be arranged.

e Relevant staff will be informed of a student who has been bullied. Specific teaching and
support staff will be instructed as to techniques/methods of identifying/dealing with any
problem. Monitoring and follow up for people who are bullied will also be a priority.

e All and any incidents will be followed through and, where helpful, home will be involved
as much as possible.

e Safe havens will be offered for those students feeling vulnerable.

Use of ‘bullying’ diaries encouraged.

e Use of Peer Mentoring system.

What happens to bullies?

e Punishment may be required as bullying will not be tolerated at HTC.

e The parents of bullies will usually be informed and sometimes involved in their
‘treatment’.

e Bullies may be put into the position of meeting their victims. The idea is to confront
them with their behaviour. The intention is to help them not to bully in future.

e Repeated or serious bullying offences will result in a student being required to follow a
structured programme of anti-bullying materials with the Inclusion Officer. The focus of
the programme is to educate and assist in modification of bullying behaviour. Further
incidents of bullying may result in consideration of exclusion.

e Bullies will be offered additional help/support and counselling if this is needed.
Restorative justice meetings between bully and bullied where appropriate.

e If the bullying relates to a criminal offence, such as racism or homophobia, the police
may be involved.

Bullying Charter

The College has signed up to the DCSF initiative ‘Bullying — A Charter for Action’. We aim to
work with staff, students and parents to create a College community where bullying is not
tolerated. The charter has been revisited and put into student language through the College
Council. This should be displayed in every classroom. The College Council have also
developed materials for PSHRE lessons during the anti-bullying week and have run sessions
for parents at the Year 7 curriculum evening and Keeping Safe evenings. All students
receive assemblies and tutorials during anti bullying week.

Bullying Policy 3

Page 97

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Appendix 3

HTC is a Stonewall school Champion and works with them to prevent and tackle homophobic
bullying and celebrate difference.

Confidentiality

e Whenever possible, ultimate confidentiality will be maintained in all aspects of reporting
of bullying or interpersonal abuse.

e This will need to be set against the need to identify who is responsible, coupled with
difficulties of identification and the late maturation of students.

Published in accordance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002

Bullying Policy 4

Page 98

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The following books are suggested to support inclusion and diversity generally, most having

narratives relating to LGBT+.

Sue Heap and Nick Sharratt
Red rockets and rainbow jelly

Puffin Books

Emily Gravett
Blue chameleon

MacMillan

Cheryl Kilodavis and Suzanne DeSimone
My princess boy

Simon and Schuster

Linda Da Haan and Stern Nijland
King and King

Tricycle Press

Todd Parr
It's okay to be different

Little, Brown and Company

Todd Parr
The family book

Little, Brown and Company

Leslea Newman
Mommy, mama and me

Tricycle Press

Leslea Newman
Daddy, papa and me

Tricycle Press

Pat Thomas

This is my family: a first look at same sex
parents

Barron’s Educational

Mary Asquith Hoffman
The great big book of families

Frances Lincoln

Robert Skutch
Who's in a family

Tricycle Press

Marcus Ewert
10,000 dresses

Triangle Square

Page 99

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Charlotte Zolotow

William’s doll Davis Levithan

Picture Lions Boy meets boy

_ _ Harper Collins
Harvey Fierstein

The sissy duckling Kate Walker

Little Simon Peter

_ Houghton Mifflin
Emily Gravett

The odd egg Brent Hartinger

Two Hoots Geography club

_ Harper. Teen
Jennifer Carr

Be who you are Sara Farizan

Author House If you could be mine

o Algonquin Books of Chapel Hill
Anna Kemp and Sarah Ogilvie

Dogs don’t do ballet Chris Beam

Simon and Schuster lam J

Little, Brown, Young
Sarah Hoffman

Jacob’s new dress Nancy Garden

Albert Whitman and Company Annie on my mind

_ Square Fish
Michael Hall

Red: a crayon’s story Alex Sanchez
Greenwillow Books Rainbow boys

Simon and Schuster

Page 100

@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



The following books, available from the School
Library Service, can also be used to support
inclusion and diversity.

Jenn Bennett
Night owls

Meeting Jack on the Owl — San Francisco’s
night bus — turns Beatrix’s world upside down.
Jack is charming, wildly attractive ... and
possibly one of San Francisco’s most notorious
graffiti artists. But Jack is hiding a piece of
himself. This book contains some wonderful
LGBT characters. KS4 (Older teen read)

Holly Black
Darkest part of the forest

Twins Hazel and Ben stand against the
dangerous inhabitants of a faerie kingdom
enslaving their town despite falling in love with
two of them. The main male character is gay.
(Older teen read)

Malorie Blackman
Boys don’t cry

Dante is thrust into fatherhood when an ex-
girlfriend dumps her baby daughter on him, as
well as having to resolve various issues with his
dysfunctional family. (Older teen read)

Alyssa Brugman
Alex as well

The story follows how friends and family react
when a teenager embraces the female gender

When Alex meets Kate the attraction is instant.
But one of them is hiding a secret and, as their
love blossoms, it threatens to ruin not just their
relationship, but their lives. (Older teen read)

Juno Dawson
Margot and me

A totally absorbing read that interweaves the
stories of two teenage girls from different times
and creates convincing voices for them both.
Friendship, love, tragedy, humour — it's all
here ... well worth having to promote LGBT
discussions. (Older teen read)

Susie Day
The secrets of Sam and Sam

A school story featuring Sam and Sammie who
live with two mothers in this story for KS2/3.
(Children’s fiction)

Liz Elwes
Promtastic

Five girls. One night. Everyone wants Prom to
be perfect, but things don’t always go as
planned. (Younger teen read)

Alex Gino
George

When people look at George, they think they
see a boy. But she knows she’s not a boy. She
knows she’s a girl. KS2/3 (Younger teen read)

John Green and David Levithan
Will Grayson, Will Grayson

One Will Grayson is straight the other is gay, the

artificially assigned since birth. (Older teen read) "¢ad)

Cat Clarke
Kiss in the dark

The timely subject matter and jaw-dropping plot
twists and turns will keep readers enthralled.

Page 101

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow

9



Liz Kessler
Read me like a book

Ashleigh Walker develops feelings for her
female teacher while struggling with problems at
home and her boyfriend. (Older teen read)

Laura Lam
Pantomime

Gene’s life resembles a debutante’s dream. Yet
she hides a secret that would see her shunned
by the nobility. Gene is both male and female in
this gothic, fantasy story. (Older teen read)

Jenny McLachlan
Star struck

Pearl's dreams of starring in the school musical
are shattered when a new girl at school takes
the part she was hoping for. Contains lesbian
issues. KS3/4 (Younger teen read)

Jandy Nelson
I'll give you the sun

Colourful, fantastical novel about art, love and
jealousy which features a gay love story. (Older
teen read)

Patrick Ness
The rest of us just live here

Growing up with demigods and zombie deer, the
17-year-old narrator takes tentative steps
towards adulthood in this smart, funny teenage
novel. Mike is pretty sure he likes girls, however
he has messed around with his gay best friend a
couple of times in the past, in this hard hitting
novel. (Older teen read)

Susin Nielsen
We are all made of molecules

The story follows what happens when two
families move in together and how the
relationship between son Stewart, geeky and
gifted, and daughter Ashley, popular and cool,

changes. Ashley’s father has recently come out
and this adds another dimension to the
relationships. (Older teen read)

Non Pratt
Unboxed

A touching story of old friends coming together
after years apart. They have inevitably changed
over time, and aren’t initially willing to share
much about their current lives. Alix in particular
is concerned about revealing her newfound
sexuality. Short novella which could be used for
discussions on identity and LGBT. (Older teen
read)

Robin Talley
What we left behind

Toni and Gretchen are a lesbian couple. They
find their relationship tested when one of them
reveals that she believes she is transgender and
thinks of herself as male. (Older teen read)

Lisa Williamson
Art of being normal

David Piper has always been an outsider. His
parents think he’s gay. The school bully thinks
he’s a freak. Only his two best friends know the
real truth — David wants to be a girl. (Older teen
read)

David Walliams
The boy in the dress

12-year-old Dennis tries to keep his fascination
with wearing dresses a secret from his friends
and family. Told with plenty of humour.
(Children’s fiction)

Susan Kuklin

Beyond magenta: transgender teens speak
out

Interviews with six American teenagers about
their lives as they identify themselves to be
transgender or gender-neutral.

Page 102

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



HW Poole
LGBT families

Looks at the issues involved with LGBT families.
The book explores the different types of family
structures that have become increasingly
common in the 21st Century.

Adam Sutherland
Gay people who changed history

An anthology of biographies focusing on
inspirational gay people who have made their
mark in history both past and present.

Catherine Bruton
S/he

Raven is gender fluid. Not a boy. Or a girl. But
kind of both — sometimes ... sort of ... Short,
contemporary teen read which raises interesting
points about gender fluidity. (Older teen read)

Tim Collins
Delete

A gay teenager discovers that he has had his
memories wiped when a boy that he has never
met before claims to be his ex-boyfriend. (Older

teen read)
If you would like to buy some or all of the LUBRARY ¢
titles on this School Library Service list, go &00 %%\
to www.petranet.co.uk and log in using your ” 48
School Library Service username and S * S
password. The list will be available to seein %, &

View your Bookshelf on the left-hand side of 4"?::.94“\“6“&
the home screen.

Your School Library Service password will give you 26%
discount on most titles and books can be jacketed and
serviced. If you do not have a password for Petranet, please
email: hg.sls@hants.gov.uk or call Tel: 01962 826660.

Page 103

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



http://www.petranet.co.uk
mailto:hq.sls@hants.gov.uk

Appendix 5

Ofsted good practice example

Ofsted

raising standards
improving lives

‘Wouldn't it be boring if we were all the
same?’ — creating a school community
that celebrates diversity: The Jenny
Hammond Primary School

URN: 103082
Region: London
Remit: Schools

Provider background

The Jenny Hammond Primary School is situated in Leytonstone, in the south of the
London Borough of Waltham Forest, East London.

Brief description

This example shows how The Jenny Hammond Primary School has used age-
appropriate literature and related activities to promote tolerance and respect. It also
shows how it has created a school community that values and celebrates the fact
that we are all different.

The good practice in detail

At The Jenny Hammond Primary School, 28 different languages are spoken by the
children and staff — an indication of its richly diverse community. A strong philosophy
is embedded in all the school’s work, based on respect and an ethos of accepting,
understanding and valuing everyone’s difference.

Celebrating diversity through literacy

The school was one of the first to become part of the ‘No Outsiders’ project and has
been at the forefront of work in challenging homophobia using age-appropriate
literature and related activities. This approach enables social and emotional
development to take place naturally alongside the development of literacy skills.

Good practice example: Schools ’ c el
The Jenny Hammond Primary School mw i ‘

October 2014, No. 140168

Page 104

b Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



=
Ofsted
The school celebrates a range of national events, such as:

B Black History Month
B International Women'’s Month
® Gypsy, Roma, Traveller History Month.

For six years, to coincide with lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgendered (LGBT) History
Month, the school has celebrated its own Diversity Week. During this week, instead
of following the normal timetable, each class reads and completes various activities
related to a ‘core’ book. The books tackle a range of themes — from different families
and gender stereotypes to LGBT historical figures such as Harvey Milk and
celebrating civil partnerships.

The deputy headteacher, John Yates-Harold, provides suggested lesson activities for
class teachers to use:

B Elmer by David McKee — Elmer the colourful elephant painted himself,
pretending to be a grey elephant when he wasn't. The lesson looks at why
he did this and why people might hide who they really are to ‘fit in’.

m [t's Okay to be Different by Todd Parr — The lesson explores gender-
stereotypes and looks at celebrities, with an overarching message that
affirms that all bullying is wrong.

B No Matter What by Debi Gliori — The children draw a family tree and a
friendship map, linking in with the Stonewall ‘Different families” scheme. The
activities also lead into discussing different types of love — friendly, family
and romantic.

m  The Boy With The Pink Hair by Perez Hilton and Jen Hill — The story is about
a boy who looks different to everyone else because of the colour of his hair
and how he overcomes bullying. The children think about how they are the
same and different, linking into bullying and phobias.

B The Paper Bag Princess by Robert Munsch and Michael Martchenko — This
story subverts the traditional structure of fairytales and stereotypical
‘princess’ gender role. The children discuss relationships as well as sexism in
the workplace.

2 Good practice example: Schools
The Jenny Hammond Primary School
October 2014, No. 140168

Page 105

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



: J
Ofsted
B Hello, Saflor by Ingrid Godon and Andre Sollie —This story starts a discussion

about keeping secrets and why it is difficult, particularly in relation to who
you love.

B The Harvey Milk Story by Kari Krakow and David Gardner — This lesson looks
at the concept of hope, fighting for rights and discrimination, following the
class reading the non-fiction story of Harvey Milk.

At the end of the week,
pupils have the opportunity
to share the work they
have produced with each
other. Providing quality
time in this way enables
pupils to consider themes in
depth and produce
thoughtful and high-quality
work.

Although the annual
Diversity Week is a focal
point, senior leaders know
it is important to include
this work in the pupils’ everyday learning experiences where appropriate.

Relationships with parents and carers

The books have been the most effective way of ensuring that parents and carers are
on board with the work. Seeing the books and lesson plans helps to dispel any
doubts in the minds of parents and carers. Having professional conversations with
them also helps.

This transparency reflects the way the school operates in its relationships with
families:

B Parents and carers are welcomed into the school for the first 10 minutes of
the day to read with their child in Key Stage 1 or to do mathematics-based
activities in Key Stage 2.

B Home visits take place before the children enter the Reception class so a
positive relationship is built with families before the children actually start at
the school.

® In the first week of school, Reception children attend for mornings only to
allow parents and carers to meet staff on a one-to-one basis in the
afternoons.

The school has fostered warm, friendly relationships between parents, carers and
staff and also between children and staff with a healthy level of reciprocal respect.

Good practice example: Schools 3
The Jenny Hammond Primary School
October 2014, No. 140168

Page 106

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




2N
Ofsted
The Stonewall *Different Families — Same Love’ posters are displayed around the
school in public areas and in each classroom. This gives the clear message, which is

echoed in the school handbook, that the school welcomes and values every parent,
carer and family.

All staff feel confident with using inclusive
language and will challenge each other if
such language is not used.

Training

Senior leaders have worked hard to create
an ethos of accepting, understanding and
valuing the diversity of the school
community. It is important that all staff buy
into this ethos and, to this end, high-quality
training is provided. This is led by the
deputy headteacher or an external trainer
such as a diversity consultant from
Stonewall. Robust systems are also in place
for training staff who are new to the
school.

Pupils’ behaviour

Senior leaders ensure that the personal, social and health education (PSHE)
programme supports the ethos of celebrating difference and challenging prejudice:

B It is complemented by the Social and Emotional Aspects of Learning (SEAL)
scheme, which is given a high profile through weekly ‘circle times’ and
assemblies. This is linked closely with the work done with the UNICEF's
Rights Respecting Schools agenda.

B The ‘rights-respecting language’ permeates the whole school, from the
individual class charters to lesson plans and displays.

B This is all underpinned by the Golden Rules and Golden Time.

This cohesive approach creates an environment in which all children are supported to
make positive choices and understand each other’s differences.

This was recognised in the school’s last inspection in March 2012, when behaviour
and safety were judged to be outstanding. The report says that ‘behaviour is
exceptional in this calm and harmonious

‘We compare any inappropriate school, contributing well towards trust
language with racist language. between pupils and teachers.
The Ch'ldre'_" have a C|€tar _ Inspectors also noted that pupils
understanding that racism is ‘understand extremely well the
_ unacceptable and therefore they difference between right and wrong and
¢« VEry eaSily can see the link with Good practice example: Schools
all other forms of inappropriate R e b

language.’ -Headteacher

Page 107

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




N, ]
Ofsted
respect each other, through the Rights and Respect agenda. In lessons they reflect
on others’ views. Pupils have an excellent understanding of different types of

bullying, including cyber-bullying and homophobic and emotional bullying, such as
name-calling and making others feel isolated.”

John Yates-Harold says: ‘Any incidents of homophobic language in the past have
been tackled swiftly, in the same way as we would tackle any form of prejudice-
based language. We compare any inappropriate language with racist language. The
children have a clear understanding that racism is unacceptable and therefore they
very easily can see the link with all other forms of inappropriate language. What is
heartening to see are those rare occasions when homophobic language happens and
the children themselves tackle it. This empowers the children but also has more
impact on the child using the language in the first place.’

The school is a Stonewall Diversity Champion and works closely with this
organisation. A focus group of children from the school was involved in helping to
shape Stonewall’s latest film for primary school pupils, ‘FREE’, which conveys a
powerful message about difference, diversity and respect. The deputy headteacher
has produced a series of lesson plans to accompany each chapter of the film.

Conclusion

The key reason why The Jenny Hammond Primary School is so successful in tackling
and preventing homophobia is because this sits very much at the heart of the
school’s whole philosophy. As Deborah Gibbon, headteacher, says, ‘I'm proud to say
that our diversity work provides a solid foundation for all our children to leave our
school equipped with the skills to understand and accept the variety of people they
will meet as they go forward into the 21st century.’

Good practice example: Schools 5
The Jenny Hammond Primary School
October 2014, No. 140168

Page 108

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




ofey

The good practice case studies that Ofsted publishes highlight specific
examples of practice that providers of education, learning and children’s
services have used to achieve successful outcomes.

For education, the case studies do not recommend a single particular
approach to teaching and learning. Ofsted has no preferred lesson
structure or teaching style. We showcase and share a wide range of
approaches that providers have found work well for them in achieving
good outcomes for children, young people and learners.

Are you thinking of putting these ideas into practice; or already doing
something similar that could help other providers; or just interested?
We'd welcome your views and ideas. Get in touch here.

To view other good practice examples, go to:
www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/goodpractice.

If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as
large print or Braille, please telephone 0300 123 1231, or email
enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk.

6 Good practice example: Schools
The Jenny Hammond Primary School
October 2014, No. 140168

Page 109

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow




Appendix 6

Appendix 6

Additional references and resources for staff

Professional association links

ASCL: www.ascl.org.uk/help-and-advice/help-and-advice.finding-our-pride.html

NAHT: Resource exploring barriers to headship for LGBT+ staff: www.naht.org.uk/ _resources/
assets/attachment/full/0/74166.pdf

NASUWT: www.nasuwt.org.uk/advice/equalities/Igbti-teachers.html

NEU: www.teachers.org.uk/equality/Igbt

Support staff trade union links

GMB: http://gmbshout.net/home.html

UNISON: www.unison.org.uk/about/what-we-do/fairness-equality/Igbt/

Unite: www.unitetheunion.org/unite-at-work/equalities/equalitiessectors/lesbiangaybisexual
andtrans/

Page 110

a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow


http://www.ascl.org.uk/help-and-advice/help-and-advice.finding-our-pride.html
http://www.naht.org.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/74166.pdf
http://www.nasuwt.org.uk/advice/equalities/lgbti-teachers.html
http://www.teachers.org.uk/equality/lgbt
http://gmbshout.net/home.html
http://www.unison.org.uk/about/what-we-do/fairness-equality/lgbt/
http://www.unitetheunion.org/unite-at-work/equalities/equalitiessectors/lesbiangaybisexualandtrans/
http://www.naht.org.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/74166.pdf
http://www.unitetheunion.org/unite-at-work/equalities/equalitiessectors/lesbiangaybisexualandtrans/

Appendix 7

Terminology

The following terms relate to all aspects of LGBT+. It may be helpful to consider these terms when
evaluating your school’s approach to delivering the Equality Act. For instance, if any member of
the school community is using derogatory terminology when referring to members of the LGBT+
community, what are the school’s procedures in dealing with this? A failure to do so would, in
effect, be illegal under the terms of the Equality Act. This list of terms may also be helpful in staff
training and development around inclusion and diversity. This glossary of terms has been taken
from the Barnardo’s Safezone training information pack (Positive Identities Service, 2015).

Asexual

A person who is not interested or does not desire sexual activity.

Androsexual

A person who has sexual feelings towards men.

Binary gender system

A system that forces all people into two categories — man or woman, boy or girl. In this system,
men and women are expected to look and behave in a particular way that is different to one
another.

Biphobia
The fear or hatred of bisexual people.

Bisexual

A person who is attracted to women and men.

Cisgender

Used to describe someone whose gender assigned at birth matches their gender identity.

Coming out

A process when a person first admits to themselves their sexual identity and then tells someone/
others about their identity as lesbian, gay or bi. Normally state coming out/transitioning for
transgender as it is part of the transitioning process whether or not they go on to have surgery.

Demisexual

A person who does not experience sexual attraction unless they form a strong emotional
connection with someone.

Page 111

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Discrimination

When you are treated less favourably that someone else because of (for instance) your real or
perceived sexual identity.

Gay

A male who is attracted to other males. Some girls and women prefer to refer to themselves as
gay women rather than lesbian.

Gender dysphoria

A medical term for the condition whereby a person feels discomfort or distress because there is a
mismatch between their assigned gender and their gender identity.

Gender identity

A person’s internal self-perception of their own gender.

Gender fluid

Having an indefinite line between gender identity, having two or more genders, having no gender
or moving between genders.

Genderless

Having no gender identity.

Gender stereotype

The assumption that boys and girls must carry out distinct roles.

Gynsexual

Anyone who only has sexual feelings towards women.

Heterosexual

A person who is attracted to people of the opposite sex. Also commonly referred to as straight.

Heterosexism

A system of beliefs and behaviours based on the assumption that heterosexuality is better than
homosexuality. This is very closely related to homophobia.

Homophobia

The dislike, fear or hatred of lesbian and gay people. It is often used to describe prejudice towards
bisexual and transgender people too, but the terms biphobia (the dislike, fear or hatred of bisexual
people) and transphobia (the dislike, fear or hatred of transgender people) are becoming more
commonly used.

Page 112

@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Homophobic bullying

When a person’s actual or perceived sexual or gender identity is used to exclude, threaten, hurt or
humiliate them.

Homosexual

A person who is attracted to people of the same sex. Nowadays this term is rarely used by
members of the LGB community to define themselves as, historically, it has been used to
medicalise or criminalise LGB people. The terms lesbian, gay and bisexual are generally
preferable.

Internalised homophobia

Negative feelings about being gay, lesbian or bisexual. This can negatively affect the way people
see themselves.

Intersex

A person who is born with sexual anatomy, reproductive organs and/or chromosome patterns that
do not fit into the typical definition of male or female.

Lesbian

A female who is attracted to other females.

LGBT

Acronym for lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans.

LGBTQ

An acronym limited to just lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and those who are questioning. It
excludes all other sexual and/or gender identities.

LGBT+

LGBT+ is an acronym for lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and (+) all other communities that
represent people with gender and sexual identities. The + stands for all other letters ... not just Q
for questioning.

Non-binary

A gender that is neither exclusively male or female.

Out

Being open about one’s sexual or gender identity.

Page 113

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Pansexual

A person who is attracted to others regardless of their biological sex, gender identity, or
expression.

Pride

Festival to celebrate being lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender.

Queer

A person who does not want to have their sexual identity reduced to an either/or term such as
heterosexual or homosexual. Lots of different people identify as queer and many of them think
that the binary gender system is too limiting. This term is often used by and about people who are
traditionally seen as lesbian or gay. Although this term has been owned by the younger
generation, many over the age of 40 still see it as a term of abuse. Many of the young are
unaware of what it was like to be LGBT+ between 1950 and 2010, so encouraging a look back at
the history of LGBT+ would be useful to help understanding.

Questioning

A person still trying to establish their identity.

Sex

A person’s biological sex includes not only their genitals but also their internal reproductive
system, their chromosomes and their secondary sexual characteristics such as breast, facial and
body hair, voice and body shape.

Sexual identity

A term used to describe a person based on who they are attracted to. For example, a person
attracted to the opposite sex might describe their sexual identity or orientation as straight.

Sexuality

Everyone has a sexuality — this is a term used to describe the ways in which people experience
themselves as sexual beings and the ways in which they express this. It includes a person’s
sexual orientation, sexual practice and behaviour. It also involves cultural and social expectations
and behaviours.

Skoliosexual

A potential sexual attraction to non-binary identified individuals.

Straight

A person who is attracted to people of the opposite gender.

Page 114
@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Trans

An umbrella term which covers the entire trans community, encompassing anyone whose gender
identity does not match the gender they are born with and/or people who identify as gender
variant with regards to gender identity and expression.

Transgender

Often refers to someone who is transitioning (or who has transitioned) from one binary gender to
the other, for example, someone who was assigned male at birth but identifies as female, or vice
versa.

Transsexual

A legal/medical term to describe a person who was assigned one gender and has transitioned or
is transitioning to live as the gender with which they identify.

Transition

When someone begins to live and present as the gender with which they identify.

Transman/F2M

A person who has been brought up by wider society as female, who sees themselves as male.

Transperson

Anyone who refuses to conform, or doesn’t fit in with a binary gender system. They may identify
as transman or transwoman or as something else entirely — such as genderqueer. There are
many different trans identities, and trans does not only refer to people who have had (or want to
have) gender reassignment surgery.

Transphobia

The dislike, fear or hatred of transgender people.

Transwoman/M2F

A person who has been brought up by wider society as male, who sees themselves as female.

Online glossary of terms

There is another excellent online glossary of terms available on the Kroma website:

www.kromalgbt.org.uk/info/glossary/.

Page 115

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


http://www.kromalgbt.org.uk/info/glossary/

Appendix 8

Appendix 8

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank the following for help and advice in developing this guidance:
LGBT+ in Hampshire Schools Task and Finish Group

Tom Armstrong-Collett, Chair of Kroma and Chair of Hampshire LGBT Alliance
Robert Carroll, Public Health Manager, Public Health, Hampshire County Council
Beth Chandler, Kings’ School, Winchester

Zoe Collins, Hampshire Educational Psychology Service, Hampshire County Council
Kate Donohoe, Public Health Manager, Hampshire County Council

Julie Fry MBE, Chief Inspector, Hampshire Constabulary

Scott Johnson, Lesbian and Gay Liaison Officer, Hampshire Constabulary

Joanna Lockhart, Public Health Principal (Children and Young People)

Andrea Marr, SMSC Co-ordinator, Horndean Technology College

Minnie Moore, Rights and Diversity Education Centre, Hampshire County Council

Steve Morton, Teaching and Learning Adviser for Personal Development Learning, Hampshire
County Council (Chair)

Anna Nolan, Hampshire Educational Psychology Service, Hampshire County Council
Michael Salmon, Development Worker, Breakout

Jayne Shelbourn-Barrow, Early Help and Partnerships Manager, Hampshire County Council
Keith Smith, Co-leader Teacher Development, Winchester University

Moira Smyth, Chair, Hampshire County Council LGBT Network

Amanda Stevens, Human Resources Education Personnel, Hampshire County Council
Dawn Tracy, LGBT Youth Development Officer

Kirsten Troman: Lesbian and Gay Liaison Officer, Hampshire Constabulary

Also ...

Andy Hunt, Deputy Director, Intercom Trust (South West England) — for permission to use extracts
from the Schools transgender guidance (Cornwall Council, 2015).

Page 116

@ Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Appendix 8

Ryan Gingell (Allsorts), Sam Beal (Brighton and Hove City Council) and Helen Emerson, PSHE
Adviser (Brighton and Hove City Council) — for permission to use extracts from the Trans inclusion
toolkit (Brighton and Hove City Council, 2013).

Tracey Sanders and the Education Inclusion Team, Hampshire County Council Children’s
Services.

Jane Fowler, Communications Officer, Hampshire County Council — for invaluable advice and
support throughout the publication process.

Page 117
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @



Appendix 9

Appendix 9

What next?

We aim for this guidance to be dynamic and continually evolving. To this end, we are happy to
receive comments and suggestions about future versions of Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a
safe place to grow.

Here is a list of additional features (amongst many) that could be covered:

« emotional health and wellbeing: are the needs of all potentially vulnerable groups being met,
particularly from the LGBT+ community

e LGBT History Month

« Office of the Police Crime Commissioner Hate Crime Reporting Centres
o Office for National Statistics

e tour operators (what is the law around travelling abroad)

« Foreign and Commonwealth Office advice for travelling to certain countries (eg there are
no-go areas within the USA)

e Peter Tatchell Foundation — promotes and protectsthe human rights of individuals,
communities and nations in the UK and internationally

e All Out — a global movement for equality

e Pink news — politics, entertainment, religion and community news for the gay, lesbian,
bisexual and transgender community in the UK and worldwide

o Trans Media Watch — a charity dedicated to improving media coverage of trans and intersex
issues

o Football v Homophobia — challenges discrimination based on sexual orientation, gender
identity and expression at all levels in football

e Kick it Out — football’s equality and inclusion organisation

o Football Clubs LGBT+ Supporters, eg Fratton Fever (Portsmouth FC)
e Proud Canaries (Norwich FC)

o Football Association

« English Football League.

What do you think? What would be the most useful additions for schools?

Page 118
a Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



Appendix 9

Please send your suggestions and comments to:

Moira Smyth:  moira.smyth@hants.gov.uk

Steve Morton: stephen.mortonl@hants.qgov.uk.

Page 119

Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow @


mailto:moira.smyth@hants.gov.uk
mailto:stephen.morton1@hants.gov.uk

Page 120
Hampshire: a safe place to learn, a safe place to grow



© Hampshire County Council

Published: June 2018

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



c¢T obed

O

Hampshire

County Councll

/. Wa)| epuaby



y2T abed

South East DCS Peer
Challenge: Care Leavers

Four senior managers from other local
authorities in the South East assessed HCC
care leavers service as a ‘critical friend’.

¥~ Hampshire

@ County Council www.hants.gov.uk



GeT obed

Areas considered:

= |s the core offer embedded?

» |[s there consistency across the service (4
teams)?

= Explore the use of SERAF’s and risk
assessments.

= Does quality assurance provide a clear and
accurate picture of the service?

» Do staff feel the culture is changing and, if
so, how?

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk



Strengths

» Staff recognised the significant investment
in frontline staff, personal assistants and
hybrid devices which are making a positive
difference (“life changing”).

= Care Leavers reported that more PAs are
making a difference ("PA’s are more

LN 1

available”, “my PA knows my story”).
* Flexible working is very positively viewed.

9¢T abed

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk



/2T abed

Strengths

= Quality Assurance framework is well

embedded.

» Senior managers re-auditing audits.
= The Hampshire Approach is known and

spoken about.
» “Managers and workers reflect”.

¥ Hampshire

e County Council

www.hants.gov.uk



82T abed

Strengths

= Effective, cohesive relationships within the

service

= Service delivery — Safer Futures
programme, Hampshire Futures

* Independent Futures — joined up thinking
& process where criteria is not met.

= Accommodation strategy

¥ Hampshire

e County Council

www.hants.gov.uk



62T obed

Areas for Consideration

We are strategically exploring how to take
the development of the service forward:

= Can we be more innovative in our
approach?

= How can we further develop our responses
to Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers?

= Can we further improve outcomes for care
leavers resident outside of Hampshire?

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk



0¢T abed

* The Local Offer has been published as a
hard copy.

 Qutcomes Star Assessment tool for
UASC - pilot.

e Senior Practitioner Personal Advisors.

* Development days — Managers, PA's &
Care Leavers.

« Qut of County Participation events.
« Specialist Personal Advisors — initiative.

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




TET obed

The Hampshire Approach

Children and Families Advisory Panel
Feb 2019

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk

g wal| epuaby



ZsT abed

Our vision

A family service — a system focussing on improving outcomes for the children in the
family context

A social work led, integrated, multi-disciplinary service, from the front door to
specialist services

An approach supporting social workers to deliver meaningful interventions and
create lasting change

Improved flexibility for good practice to flourish

Children are supported by and within their family/community wherever possible

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




ceT abed

Outcomes — what are we looking to
achieve?

* Positive and sustained change for children, young people and their families
 Keeping more children safely at home

* Families feeling they are getting the right support, at right the time, from the right
person

We will see we are making a difference through:
» Reduction in Looked After children numbers
» Reduction in repeat referrals

» What families tell us — external evaluation

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




yeT abed

Hampshire Approach

Why we are doing this

Building the approach

* An approach, not a process

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




GeT obed

A clear and shared mind set

We believe

* Developing positive relationships with individuals and families is the heart of what we
do.

* Everyone has strengths, and we get the best from each other when we recognise and
build on those strengths.

* In listening, respecting and working together with a child/adult and family and those
that have a responsibility to them.

* That working with the whole family will achieve the best outcomes for the child/adult
in the long term.

* That working in this way enables us to identify, respond to and manage risk safely.

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




o¢T abed

The Hampshire Approach

knowled ge,
skills and
learning

Leadership

¥ Hampshire

e County Councll www.hants.gov.uk




/€T obed

Translating the mindset
into practice

Our areas of focus

¥~ Hampshire

e County Councll

Building
relationships

Strength based
conversations

Working
collaboratively

Understanding
wellbeing and
resilience

Applying to
policy, practice
and interventions

N

www.hants.gov.uk



8¢T abed

Hampshire Approach learning pathway

Building relationships with a
strength based approach

Motivational Interviewing
skills

Solution Focused conversations

¥ Hampshire

e County Councll www.hants.gov.uk




6ST obed

Strengths based working

True or False?

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




ot T abed

ALy
@

What does it look like?

Traditional practice

past?

We capture the individuals/families view during
assessment and planning

the task, rather than the reason why we’re doing
the task

We want to reduce the number of children in care>

Hampshire

County Council

Hampshire mind set

We ask - what would make life look good for you?
What does it look like? How do you want to get
there?

N

We ask - what can’t you do? How much support
do you need to complete this task? What are the
risks you present? What has gone wrong in the

We assess, plan and review together with an

individual, their family, those important to them,
and the professionals who have a responsibility to
them.

N

Social work can be process driven, with a focus on
meeting statutory targets. Sometimes we focus on

We are driven by improving outcomes for

individuals/families. Our assessments, plans and
interventions are meaningful and built around our
agreed outcomes.

We want to increase the number of children
staying safely at home.

AV V4

www.hants.gov.uk




T T obed

Myth busting

We’re doing the strengths based approach.....

v The Hampshire Strengths Based Approach includes several elements, of which strength based
working is just one. It is also about prioritising relationships, working collaboratively, supporting the
whole family, understanding resilience and wellbeing and managing risk safely

I’'ve just paid you a compliment - that’s strength based working!

v’ Strength based working is about recognising and building on strengths so the person you’re working
with can grow and thrive.

The Courts don’t want to see a strengths based report, | need to highlight the risks

v We already submit balanced and strength based reports to Court — they highlight what we’ve tried,
what has been achieved, but also all the reasons why an order/decision is required. Talking about
risks and strengths is not mutually exclusive.

I need to be directive, but this isn’t strength-based is it?

v We all use different communications styles for different audiences and purposes. There will be times
when you need to be directive. But it is helpful to reference why and what impact this will have.

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk




Children’s Services: The Hampshire
Approach journey so far...

Discover and Design

Implementation

Research and develop the Hampshire

Approach framework:
PP ] ) ] Hampshire Approach guidance and tool kit
*- University of Winchester available online

*- Front line staff

ZvT1 abed

*- Managers Hampshire approach learning pathway Measure embedding the Hampshire
*- Internal and International Research launched approach
Getting started activities completed in all
Work across districts, teams and roles to districts Design Business as usual model to ensure
understand culture in the branch sustainability and continuous improvement

Children & Family assessment updated and

Develop the Hampshire Approach Learning LR

Pathway

Child Protection and Children in Need plan
updated

¥ Hampshire

e County Councll www.hants.gov.uk




et T obed

Strengths Based Conversations

e Exercise

¥ Hampshire

e County Council www.hants.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Supporting Children in Care who are LGBT+
	LGBT+ Guidance for Hampshire Schools and Colleges

	7 Care Leavers Peer Challenge
	8 The Hampshire Approach

